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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from              to             

Commission file number 1-13175

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 74-1828067
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
One Valero Way

San Antonio, Texas
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(Address of principal executive offices)

78249

(Zip Code)

(210) 345-2000

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one).

Large accelerated filer  x                                         Accelerated filer  ¨                                         Non-accelerated filer  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares of the registrant�s only class of common stock, $0.01 par value, outstanding as of April 30, 2006 was 615,453,161.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Millions of Dollars, Except Par Value)

March 31,

2006
December 31,

2005
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $ 436 $ 436
Restricted cash 30 30
Receivables, net 3,115 3,564
Inventories 4,381 4,039
Deferred income taxes 145 142
Prepaid expenses and other 74 65

Total current assets 8,181 8,276

Property, plant and equipment, at cost 21,131 20,388
Accumulated depreciation (2,707) (2,532)

Property, plant and equipment, net 18,424 17,856

Intangible assets, net 289 298
Goodwill 4,924 4,926
Investment in Valero L.P. 326 327
Deferred charges and other assets, net 1,159 1,045

Total assets $ 33,303 $ 32,728

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 3 $ 222
Accounts payable 6,167 5,563
Accrued expenses 394 581
Taxes other than income taxes 487 595
Income taxes payable 117 39
Deferred income taxes 276 305

Total current liabilities 7,444 7,305

Long-term debt, less current portion 5,089 5,109

Capital lease obligations, less current portion 46 47

Deferred income taxes 3,756 3,615
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Other long-term liabilities 1,570 1,602

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 2,451,116 and 3,164,151 shares issued and
outstanding 53 68
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,200,000,000 shares authorized; 622,643,499 and 621,230,266 shares
issued 6 6
Additional paid-in capital 7,952 8,164
Treasury stock, at cost; 7,502,147 and 3,807,976 common shares (420) (196)
Retained earnings 7,484 6,673
Accumulated other comprehensive income 323 335

Total stockholders� equity 15,398 15,050

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 33,303 $ 32,728

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Millions of Dollars, Except per Share Amounts and Supplemental Information)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Operating revenues (1) (2) $ 20,941 $ 14,953

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales (1) 18,082 13,072
Refining operating expenses 926 580
Retail selling expenses 189 172
General and administrative expenses 151 104
Depreciation and amortization expense 260 179

Total costs and expenses 19,608 14,107

Operating income 1,333 846
Equity in earnings of Valero L.P. 12 9
Other expense, net �  (2)
Interest and debt expense:
Incurred (96) (74)
Capitalized 37 11

Income before income tax expense 1,286 790
Income tax expense 437 256

Net income 849 534
Preferred stock dividends 1 4

Net income applicable to common stock $ 848 $ 530

Earnings per common share $ 1.37 $ 1.03
Weighted-average common shares outstanding (in millions) 619 512
Earnings per common share � assuming dilution $ 1.32 $ 0.96
Weighted-average common equivalent shares outstanding (in millions) 644 556
Dividends per common share $ 0.06 $ 0.04

Supplemental information (billions of dollars):
(1)    Includes the following amounts related to crude oil buy/sell arrangements
    (see Note 2, EITF Issue No. 04-13):
Operating revenues N/A  $             1.2
Cost of sales N/A  1.2
(2)    Includes excise taxes on sales by our U.S. retail system $              0.2  0.2

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Millions of Dollars)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 849 $ 534
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 260 179
Stock-based compensation expense 23 14
Deferred income tax expense 120 102
Changes in current assets and current liabilities 537 (14)
Changes in deferred charges and credits and other, net (49) (11)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,740 804

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (775) (338)
Deferred turnaround and catalyst costs (199) (107)
Contingent payments in connection with acquisitions (50) (50)
Other investing activities, net 11 (34)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,013) (529)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance costs 31 35
Long-term debt repayments (251) (313)
Issuance of common stock in connection with employee benefit plans 32 26
Benefit from tax deduction in excess of recognized stock-based compensation cost 89 �  
Common and preferred stock dividends (38) (22)
Purchase of treasury stock (590) (177)

Net cash used in financing activities (727) (451)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash �  (2)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary cash investments �  (178)
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 436 864

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period $     436 $     686

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Millions of Dollars)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Net income $ 849 $ 534

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment (8)  (13)

Net gain (loss) on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges:
Net gain (loss) arising during the period, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $(1) and $122 2 (226)
Net (gain) loss reclassified into income, net of income tax expense (benefit) of $3 and $(23) (6)  43

Net loss on cash flow hedges   (4)    (183)

Other comprehensive loss   (12)  (196)

Comprehensive income $ 837 $ 338

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

As used in this report, the terms �Valero,� �we,� �us,� or �our� may refer to Valero Energy Corporation, one or more of our consolidated subsidiaries, or
all of them taken as a whole.

These unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Valero and subsidiaries in which Valero has a controlling interest.
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in 50% or less owned entities are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.

These unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete consolidated financial
statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All such adjustments
are of a normal recurring nature unless disclosed otherwise. Financial information for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 included
in these Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements is derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements. Operating
results for the three months ended March 31, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2006.

The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 has been derived from the audited financial statements as of that date. For further
information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Share and per share data (except par value) presented for 2005 reflect the effect of a two-for-one stock split which was effected in the form of a
common stock dividend distributed on December 15, 2005, as discussed in Note 8 under �2005 Common Stock Split.�

7
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. These reclassifications included amounts
previously reported in 2005 for refining operating expenses, retail selling expenses, general and administrative expenses, and depreciation and
amortization expense which were reclassified due to the following changes that took effect on January 1, 2006: (i) information services costs that
were previously allocated to the operating units are now being reported as general and administrative expenses to better reflect the area
responsible for such costs and (ii) Statement No. 123R (discussed in Note 2) was implemented, which resulted in amounts previously reported as
amortization expense now being reported as operating, selling or general and administrative expenses. The reclassified amounts were as follows
(in millions):

Three Months Ended March 31, 2005
Previously

Reported Reclassifications

Currently

Reported
Refining operating expenses $ 591 $ (11) $ 580
Retail selling expenses 175 (3) 172
General and administrative expenses 83 21 104
Depreciation and amortization expense 186 (7) 179

2. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment�
(Statement No. 123R), which requires the expensing of the fair value of stock options. We adopted Statement No. 123R on January 1, 2006. The
specific impact of our adoption of Statement No. 123R will depend on levels of share-based incentive awards granted in the future. Had we
adopted Statement No. 123R in prior periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of Statement No. 123 as
described in Note 13.

Statement No. 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported in our statements of
cash flows as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as previously required. This requirement reduces cash flows from
operating activities and increases cash flows from financing activities beginning in 2006. While we cannot estimate the specific magnitude of
this change on future cash flows because it depends on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options, the cash flows recognized
for such excess tax deductions were $89 million and $19 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Under our employee stock compensation plans, certain awards of stock options and restricted stock provide that employees vest in the award
when they retire or will continue to vest in the award after retirement over the nominal vesting period established in the award. We previously
accounted for such awards by recognizing compensation cost, if any, under APB Opinion No. 25 and pro forma compensation cost under
Statement No. 123 over the nominal vesting period, as disclosed in Note 13. Upon the adoption of Statement No. 123R, we changed our method
of recognizing compensation cost to the non-substantive vesting period approach for any awards that are granted after the adoption of Statement
No. 123R. Under the non-substantive vesting period approach, compensation cost is recognized immediately for awards granted to
retirement-eligible employees or over the period from the grant date to the date retirement eligibility is achieved if that date is expected to occur
during the nominal vesting period. If the non-substantive vesting period approach had been used by us for awards granted prior to January 1,
2006, the impact on the pro forma net income applicable to common stock and pro

8
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

forma net income amounts for the three months ended March 31, 2005, and the impact on net income applicable to common stock and net
income for the three months ended March 31, 2006, would have been less than $1 million as disclosed in Note 13.

EITF Issue No. 04-5

In June 2005, the FASB ratified its consensus on Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-5, �Determining Whether a General Partner, or
the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights� (EITF
No. 04-5), which requires the general partner in a limited partnership to determine whether the limited partnership is controlled by, and therefore
should be consolidated by, the general partner. The guidance in EITF No. 04-5 was effective after June 29, 2005 for general partners of all new
partnerships formed and for existing limited partnerships for which the partnership agreements are modified. For general partners in all other
limited partnerships, the guidance in EITF No. 04-5 was effective no later than January 1, 2006. We adopted EITF No. 04-5 effective January 1,
2006, the adoption of which had no impact on the accounting for our investment in Valero L.P.

EITF Issue No. 04-13

Through December 31, 2005, our operating revenues included sales related to certain buy/sell arrangements. In September 2005, the FASB
ratified its consensus on EITF Issue No. 04-13, �Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty� (EITF No. 04-13),
which requires that inventory purchase and sales transactions with the same counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another
should be combined for purposes of applying AICPA Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 29, �Accounting for Nonmonetary
Transactions� (APB No. 29). The guidance in EITF No. 04-13 is effective for transactions completed in reporting periods beginning after
March 15, 2006, with early application permitted. We adopted EITF No. 04-13 on January 1, 2006.

One issue addressed by EITF No. 04-13 details factors to consider in evaluating whether certain individual transactions to purchase and sell
inventory are made in contemplation of one another and therefore should be viewed as one transaction when applying the principles of APB
No. 29. When applying these factors, certain of our buy/sell arrangements are deemed to be made in contemplation of one another. Accordingly,
commencing January 1, 2006, these buy/sell arrangements have been accounted for as one transaction in applying the principles of APB No. 29
and revenues and cost of sales ceased to be recognized in connection with these arrangements. If we had applied EITF No. 04-13 for the three
months ended March 31, 2005, operating revenues and cost of sales would have been reduced by the amounts reflected in the supplemental
information on the face of the consolidated statements of income.

FASB Statement No. 155

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments,� which amends Statement No. 133,
�Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� and Statement No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.� Statement No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of
an entity�s fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The adoption of Statement No. 155 is not expected to affect our financial position or
results of operations.

FASB Statement No. 156

In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 156, �Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets,� which amends Statement No. 140,
�Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.� Statement No. 156 requires the initial
recognition at fair value of a

9
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

servicing asset or servicing liability when an obligation to service a financial asset is undertaken by entering into a servicing contract. Statement
No. 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of Statement No. 156 is not
expected to affect our financial position or results of operations.

3. ACQUISITIONS

Premcor Acquisition

On September 1, 2005, we completed our merger with Premcor Inc. (Premcor). As used in this report, Premcor Acquisition refers to the merger
of Premcor with and into Valero. Premcor was an independent petroleum refiner and supplier of unbranded transportation fuels, heating oil,
petrochemical feedstocks, petroleum coke and other petroleum products with all of its operations in the United States. Premcor owned and
operated refineries in Port Arthur, Texas; Lima, Ohio; Memphis, Tennessee; and Delaware City, Delaware, with a combined crude oil
throughput capacity of approximately 800,000 barrels per day.

The purchase price of the Premcor Acquisition has been preliminarily allocated based on estimated fair values of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, pending the completion of an independent appraisal and other evaluations, including obtaining
additional information related to certain legal and environmental contingencies that existed prior to the merger. The purchase price and the
preliminary purchase price allocation as of March 31, 2006 were as follows (in millions):

Cash paid $ 3,377
Transaction costs 27
Less unrestricted cash acquired (1,061)

Premcor Acquisition, net of cash acquired 2,343
Common stock and stock options issued 3,773

Total purchase price, excluding unrestricted cash acquired $ 6,116

Current assets, net of unrestricted cash acquired $ 3,438
Property, plant and equipment 5,878
Intangible assets 5
Goodwill 2,526
Deferred charges and other assets 30
Current liabilities, less current portion of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations (1,794)
Long-term debt assumed, including current portion (1,912)
Capital lease obligation, including current portion (14)
Deferred income taxes (1,678)
Other long-term liabilities (363)

Purchase price, excluding unrestricted cash acquired $ 6,116

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The consolidated statements of income include the results of operations of the Premcor Acquisition commencing on September 1, 2005. As a
result, information for the three months ended March 31, 2006 presented below represents actual results of operations.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following unaudited pro forma financial information assumes that the Premcor Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2005. The pro forma
information assumes 85 million shares of common stock were issued, $1.5 billion of debt was incurred and $1.9 billion of available cash was
utilized to fund the Premcor Acquisition on January 1, 2005.

The unaudited pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations (in millions, except per share
amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Operating revenues $ 20,941 $ 18,927
Operating income 1,333 1,042
Net income 849 636
Earnings per common share 1.37 1.06
Earnings per common share � assuming dilution 1.32 0.98

4. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 included $22 million of cash held in trust related to change-in-control payments to
be made to former officers and key employees of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corporation (UDS) in connection with the acquisition of UDS
that occurred in December 2001. Restricted cash as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 also included $8 million of cash assumed in the
Premcor Acquisition, which was held in trust mainly to satisfy claims under Premcor�s directors� and officers� liability policy.

5. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in millions):

March 31,

2006
December 31,

2005
Refinery feedstocks $ 2,222 $ 1,826
Refined products and blendstocks 1,908 1,960
Convenience store merchandise 90 91
Materials and supplies 161 162

Inventories $ 4,381 $ 4,039

As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the replacement cost (market value) of LIFO inventories exceeded their LIFO carrying amounts
by approximately $4.2 billion and $3.3 billion, respectively.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. INVESTMENT IN AND TRANSACTIONS WITH VALERO L.P.

Our ownership interest in Valero L.P. as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was 23.4%, which was composed of a 2% general partner
interest, incentive distribution rights and a 21.4% limited partner interest. The limited partner interest as of March 31, 2006 was represented by
627,339 common units and 9,599,322 subordinated units of Valero L.P. Financial information reported by Valero L.P. for the three months
ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 is summarized below (in millions):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Revenues $ 274 $   57
Operating income 56 25
Net income 39 19

Under a services agreement, we provide Valero L.P. with certain corporate functions for an annual fee as prescribed by the services agreement.
In addition, we charge Valero L.P. for employee costs related to operating and maintenance services performed on certain Valero L.P. assets.
We also pay Valero L.P. certain fees under separate throughput, handling, terminalling and service agreements with Valero L.P.

As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, our �receivables, net� included $9 million and $13 million, respectively, from Valero L.P.,
representing amounts due for employee costs, insurance costs, operating expenses, administrative costs and rentals. As of March 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, our �accounts payable� included $20 million and $22 million, respectively, to Valero L.P., representing amounts due for
pipeline tariffs, terminalling fees and tank rentals and fees. The following table summarizes the results of transactions with Valero L.P. (in
millions):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Fees and expenses charged by us to Valero L.P. $ 26 $ 11
Fees and expenses charged to us by Valero L.P. 61 55

On March 31, 2006, Valero GP Holdings, LLC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Valero, filed a registration statement on Form S-1 with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for an initial public offering of approximately 37% of its units representing limited liability
company interests. Subsidiaries of Valero GP Holdings, LLC own the general partner interest, the incentive distribution rights and a 21.4%
limited partner interest in Valero L.P. After this initial public offering, if consummated, subsidiaries of Valero will hold an approximate 63%
ownership interest in Valero GP Holdings, LLC. It is our intention to further reduce and ultimately sell all of our interest in Valero GP Holdings,
LLC, pending market conditions. We expect to use funds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include acquisitions,
stock repurchases and debt reduction.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT AND SHORT-TERM DEBT

During March 2006, we made a scheduled debt repayment of $220 million related to our 7.375% notes. During the three months ended
March 31, 2006, we borrowed and repaid $31 million under our Canadian revolving credit facility and $3 million under a short-term
uncommitted bank credit facility.

12
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

2% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, 713,035 shares of our 2% mandatory convertible preferred stock were converted into 1,413,233
shares of our common stock. During April 2006, 34,225 additional shares of our preferred stock were converted into 67,833 shares of our
common stock.

On April 27, 2006, our board of directors declared a dividend on the mandatory convertible preferred stock of $0.125 per share payable on
June 30, 2006 to holders of record at the close of business on June 29, 2006.

2005 Common Stock Split

On September 15, 2005, our board of directors approved a two-for-one split of our common stock that was effected in the form of a stock
dividend. The stock dividend was distributed on December 15, 2005 to stockholders of record on December 2, 2005. In connection with the
stock split, our shareholders approved on December 1, 2005, an amendment to our certificate of incorporation to increase the number of
authorized common shares from 600 million to 1.2 billion.

All share and per share data (except par value) for 2005 have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the stock split. In addition, the number of
shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the mandatory convertible preferred stock, the exercise of outstanding stock options and
the vesting of other stock awards were proportionately increased in accordance with the terms of those respective agreements and plans.

Treasury Stock

During the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, we purchased 10.7 million and 5.6 million shares of our common stock at a cost of
$590 million and $177 million, respectively, in connection with the administration of our employee benefit plans. During the three months ended
March 31, 2006, we issued 7.0 million treasury shares at an average cost of $52.24 per share, and for the three months ended March 31, 2005,
we issued 3.3 million treasury shares at an average cost of $17.53 per share, for our employee benefit plans.

Common Stock Dividends

On April 27, 2006, our board of directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.08 per common share payable June 14, 2006 to
holders of record at the close of business on May 17, 2006.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings per common share amounts were computed as follows (dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Earnings per Common Share:
Net income $ 849 $ 534
Preferred stock dividends 1 4

Net income applicable to common stock $ 848 $ 530

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 619 512

Earnings per common share $ 1.37 $ 1.03

Earnings per Common Share � Assuming Dilution:
Net income applicable to common equivalent shares $ 849 $ 534

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 619 512
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options 19 20
Performance awards and other benefit plans 1 6
Mandatory convertible preferred stock 5 18

Weighted-average common equivalent shares outstanding 644 556

Earnings per common share � assuming dilution $ 1.32 $ 0.96

10. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In order to determine net cash provided by operating activities, net income is adjusted by, among other things, changes in current assets and
current liabilities as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Decrease (increase) in current assets:
Receivables, net $ 450 $ (323)
Inventories (342) (479)
Prepaid expenses and other (11) 2
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable 606 950
Accrued expenses (140) (58)
Taxes other than income taxes (104) (97)
Income taxes payable 78 (9)
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Changes in current assets and current liabilities $ 537 $ (14)

14

Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 18



Table of Contents

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The above changes in current assets and current liabilities differ from changes between amounts reflected in the applicable consolidated balance
sheets for the respective periods for the following reasons:

� the amounts shown above exclude changes in cash and temporary cash investments, deferred income taxes, and current portion of
long-term debt and capital lease obligations, as well as the effect of certain noncash investing activities discussed below,

� previously accrued contingent earn-out payments are reflected separately in investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash
flows; and

� certain differences between consolidated balance sheet changes and consolidated statement of cash flow changes reflected above result
from translating foreign currency denominated amounts at different exchange rates.

Noncash financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2006 included the conversion of 713,035 shares of preferred stock into
1,413,233 shares of our common stock as discussed in Note 8. There were no significant noncash investing activities for the three months ended
March 31, 2006.

Noncash investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2005 included adjustments to property, plant and equipment and certain
current and noncurrent assets and liabilities resulting from adjustments to the purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of the Aruba
Refinery.

Noncash financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2005 included:

� the recognition of a $28 million capital lease obligation and related capital lease asset pertaining to certain equipment at our Texas
City Refinery and

� the conversion of 927,512 shares of preferred stock into 1,838,324 shares of our common stock.
Cash flows related to interest and income taxes were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005

Interest paid (net of amount capitalized) $ 15 $ 18
Income taxes paid, net of tax refunds received 151 164

11. PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The net gain (loss) recognized in income representing the amount of hedge ineffectiveness was as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended March 31,
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2006 2005
Fair value hedges $ (3) $    1
Cash flow hedges �  (2)

The above amounts were included in �cost of sales� in the consolidated statements of income. No component of the derivative instruments� gains or
losses was excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. No amounts were recognized in income for hedged firm commitments that no
longer qualify as fair value hedges.
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For cash flow hedges, gains and losses reported in �accumulated other comprehensive income� in the consolidated balance sheets are reclassified
into cost of sales when the forecasted transactions affect income. During the three months ended March 31, 2005, we recognized in �accumulated
other comprehensive income� unrealized after-tax losses of $226 million on certain cash flow hedges, primarily related to forward sales of
distillates and associated forward purchases of crude oil. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, there were no significant gains or
losses recognized in �accumulated other comprehensive income.� No amounts related to cash flow hedges remain in �accumulated other
comprehensive income� as of March 31, 2006. For the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, there were no amounts reclassified from
�accumulated other comprehensive income� into income as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information for our two reportable segments, refining and retail, was as follows (in millions):

Refining Retail Corporate Total
Three months ended March 31, 2006:
Operating revenues from external customers $ 19,036 $ 1,905 $ �  $ 20,941
Intersegment revenues 1,311 �  �  1,311
Operating income (loss) 1,472 21 (160) 1,333

Three months ended March 31, 2005:
Operating revenues from external customers $ 13,366 $ 1,587 $ �  $ 14,953
Intersegment revenues 1,042 �  �  1,042
Operating income (loss) 944 14 (112) 846
Total assets by reportable segment were as follows (in millions):

March 31,

2006

December 31,

2005
Refining $ 30,306 $ 29,609
Retail 1,769 1,867
Corporate 1,228 1,252

Total consolidated assets $ 33,303 $ 32,728

The entire balance of goodwill as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 has been included in the total assets of the refining reportable
segment.

13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As discussed in Note 2, on January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement No. 123R, which requires the expensing of the fair value of stock
compensation awards. Prior to our adoption of Statement No. 123R, we accounted for our employee stock compensation plans using the intrinsic
value method of accounting set forth in APB Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,� and related interpretations as
permitted by Statement No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.�

Stock-based compensation expense recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2005 was $9 million, net of a $5 million tax benefit.
Because we accounted for our employee stock compensation
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

plans using the intrinsic value method, compensation cost was not recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the three months
ended March 31, 2005 for our fixed stock option plans as all options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. Had compensation cost for our fixed stock option plans been determined based on the grant-date fair value
of awards consistent with the alternative method set forth in Statement No. 123, our net income applicable to common stock, net income and
earnings per common share, both with and without dilution, for the three months ended March 31, 2005 would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated in the following table (in millions, except per share amounts):

Net income applicable to common stock, as reported $ 530
Deduct: Compensation expense on stock options determined under fair value method for all awards, net of
related tax effects (4)

Pro forma net income applicable to common stock $ 526

Earnings per common share:
As reported $ 1.03
Pro forma 1.03

Net income, as reported $ 534
Deduct: Compensation expense on stock options determined under fair value method for all awards, net of
related tax effects (4)

Pro forma net income $ 530

Earnings per common share � assuming dilution:
As reported $ 0.96
Pro forma 0.95

Subsequent to the adoption of Statement No. 123R, our total stock-based compensation expense recognized for the three months ended
March 31, 2006 was $15 million, net of an $8 million tax benefit. We adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement No. 123R using
the modified prospective application. Accordingly, we are recognizing compensation expense for all newly granted stock options and stock
options modified, repurchased, or cancelled after January 1, 2006. In addition, compensation cost for the unvested portion of stock options and
other awards that were outstanding as of January 1, 2006 is being recognized over the remaining vesting period based on the fair value at date of
grant and the attribution approach utilized in determining the pro forma information reflected above.

Upon adoption of Statement No. 123R, compensation expense for stock options granted on or after January 1, 2006 is being recognized on a
straight-line basis, and we have changed our attribution approach for new grants that have retirement-eligibility provisions from the nominal
vesting period approach to the non-substantive vesting period approach. If the non-substantive vesting period approach had been used by us for
awards granted prior to January 1, 2006, the impact on the pro forma net income applicable to common stock and pro forma net income amounts
reflected above for the three months ended March 31, 2005, and the impact on net income applicable to common stock and net income for the
three months ended March 31, 2006, would have been less than $1 million.
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We have various fixed and performance-based stock compensation plans under which awards may currently be granted, which are summarized
as follows:

� The 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the OSIP) authorizes the grant of various stock and stock-based awards to our employees
and our non-employee directors. Awards available under the OSIP include options to purchase shares of common stock, performance
awards that vest upon the achievement of an objective performance goal, and restricted stock which vests over a period determined by
our compensation committee. As of March 31, 2006, a total of 19,582,632 shares of our common stock remained available to be
awarded under the OSIP.

� A non-employee director stock option plan provides our non-employee directors automatic grants of stock options to purchase our
common stock upon their election to our board of directors and annual grants of stock options upon their continued service on the
board. As of March 31, 2006, a total of 286,000 shares of our common stock remained available for issuance under this plan.

� A restricted stock plan for non-employee directors provides non-employee directors, upon their election to the board of directors, a
grant of our common stock valued at $60,000 that vests in three equal annual installments, with similar grants issued after full vesting
of prior grants. As of March 31, 2006, a total of 271,058 shares of our common stock remained available to be awarded under this
plan.

� The 2003 Employee Stock Incentive Plan authorizes the grant of various stock and stock-related awards to employees and prospective
employees. Awards include options to purchase shares of common stock, performance awards that vest upon the achievement of an
objective performance goal, stock appreciation rights, and restricted stock which vests over a period determined by our compensation
committee. As of March 31, 2006, a total of 5,447,561 shares of our common stock remained available to be awarded under this plan.

In addition, we formerly maintained other stock option plans under which previously granted stock options remain outstanding. No shares are
available to be awarded under these plans.

Each of our current stock-based compensation arrangements is discussed below. The tax benefit realized for the tax deductions resulting from
exercises and vestings under all of our stock compensation arrangements totaled $121 million and $19 million, respectively, for the three months
ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

Stock Options

Under the terms of our various stock option plans, the exercise price of options granted is not less than the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of grant. Stock options become exercisable pursuant to the individual written agreements between the participants and us,
usually in three or five equal annual installments beginning one year after the date of grant, with unexercised options generally expiring seven or
ten years from the date of grant.
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A summary of the status of our stock option awards is presented in the table below (in millions, except per share amounts).

Number

of Stock
Options

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Price

Per Share

Weighted-

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2006 42.2 $ 13.31
Granted �  �  
Exercised (2.2) 10.29
Forfeited �  �  

Outstanding at March 31, 2006 40.0 13.47 5.6 $ 1,854

Exercisable at March 31, 2006 29.0 9.12 4.9 1,469

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $18.80, $8.02 and
$3.82 per stock option, respectively. The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Expected volatility 40.0% 41.4% 44.5%
Expected dividend yield 0.4% 0.7% 1.0%
Expected life (years) 5.0 5.0 4.9
Risk-free interest rate 4.3% 3.3% 3.1%
As of March 31, 2006, there was $74 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding unvested stock option awards, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.5 years. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during
the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was $104 million and $56 million, respectively. Cash received from stock option exercises for
the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was $18 million and $13 million, respectively.
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Restricted Stock

Restricted stock is granted to employees and non-employee directors. Restricted stock vests in accordance with individual written agreements
between the participants and us, usually in equal annual installments over a period of three or five years beginning one year after the date of
grant. A summary of the status of our restricted stock awards is presented in the table below (in millions, except per share amounts).

Number of

Shares

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

Per Share
Nonvested shares at January 1, 2006 1.5 $ 27.72
Granted �  �  
Vested �  �  
Forfeited �  �  

Nonvested shares at March 31, 2006 1.5 27.72

As of March 31, 2006, there was $39 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding unvested restricted stock awards. That
cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately four years.

Performance Awards

We grant performance awards to certain key employees which vest only upon the achievement of an objective performance measure.
Performance awards granted are subject to vesting in three annual amounts. The portion of each year�s amount that vests is determined by our
total shareholder return over a rolling three-year period compared to the total shareholder return of a defined peer group.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, 78,660 performance awards were granted and no awards were forfeited. The weighted-average
grant-date fair value of the awards granted during the three months ended March 31, 2006 was $58.81 per share, which was based on the market
price of our common stock on the date of grant reduced by the discounted present value of expected dividends over the vesting period. The total
fair value of performance awards that vested during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was $193 million and $14 million,
respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

As of March 31, 2006, 671,354 unvested restricted stock units were outstanding. Restricted stock units vest in equal annual amounts over a
three-year or five-year period beginning one year after the date of grant. These restricted stock units are payable in cash based on the price of our
common stock on the date of vesting, and therefore they are accounted for as liability-based awards under Statement No. 123R. No restricted
stock units were granted or forfeited during the three months ended March 31, 2006. Based on the price of our common stock on March 31,
2006, the fair value of the unvested restricted stock units was $40 million, $13 million of which was recognized as of March 31, 2006.
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The components of net periodic benefit cost related to our defined benefit plans were as follows for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and
2005 (in millions):

Pension Plans

Other Postretirement

Benefit Plans
2006 2005 2006 2005

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 25 $ 16 $ 3 $ 2
Interest cost 16 14 6 4
Expected return on plan assets (14) (12) �  �  
Amortization of:
Prior service cost 1 1 (2) (2)
Net loss 3 2 2 2

Net periodic benefit cost $ 31 $ 21 $ 9 $ 6

Our anticipated contributions to our pension plans during 2006 have not changed from amounts previously disclosed in our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our minimum required contribution to our qualified pension plans during 2006
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act is less than $5 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, we
contributed $15 million and $12 million, respectively, to our qualified pension plans.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Accounts Receivable Sales Facility

As of March 31, 2006, we had an accounts receivable sales facility with a group of third-party financial institutions to sell on a revolving basis
up to $1 billion of eligible trade receivables, which matures in August 2008. As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the amount of
eligible receivables sold to the third-party financial institutions was $1 billion.

Contingent Earn-Out Agreements

In both January 2006 and January 2005, we made previously accrued earn-out payments related to the acquisition of the St. Charles Refinery of
$50 million.

The following table summarizes the aggregate payments we have made and payment limitations related to the following acquisitions (in
millions).

Aggregate

Payments

Made Through

Annual

Maximum

Limit

Aggregate

Limit
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March 31,
2006

Basis Petroleum, Inc. $ 174 $ 35 $ 200
St. Charles Refinery 100 50 175
Delaware City Refinery �  50 75
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Insurance Recoveries

During the third quarter of 2005, certain of our refineries experienced business interruption losses associated with Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.
As a result of these losses, we have submitted claims to our insurance carriers under our insurance policies. No amounts related to these potential
business interruption insurance recoveries were recognized in our consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2006.

Environmental Matters

The Environmental Protection Agency�s (EPA) Tier II Gasoline and Diesel Standards. The EPA�s Tier II gasoline and diesel standards, adopted
under the Clean Air Act, phase in limitations on the sulfur content of gasoline (which began in 2004) and diesel fuel sold to highway consumers
(beginning in June 2006). All of our refineries have implemented strategies to comply with the Tier II gasoline and diesel standards. We estimate
that capital expenditures of approximately $1.3 billion will be required from 2006 through 2008 for our refineries to meet the Tier II
specifications. This estimate includes amounts related to projects at three refineries to provide hydrogen necessary for removing sulfur from
gasoline and diesel. We expect these cost estimates to change as additional engineering is completed and progress is made toward completion of
these projects.

EPA�s Section 114 Initiative. Prior to the Premcor Acquisition, our Port Arthur, Memphis and Lima Refineries received information requests
from the EPA pursuant to Section 114 of the Clean Air Act as part of the EPA�s National Petroleum Refinery Initiative to reduce air emissions
(Initiative). We have been engaged in settlement discussions with the EPA concerning these three refineries and are working to finalize the terms
of a consent decree with the EPA. We expect to incur penalties and related expenses in connection with a potential settlement, but we believe
that any settlement penalties will be immaterial to our results of operations and financial position. We expect the potential settlement to require
significant capital improvements or changes in operating parameters, or both, at the three refineries.

Litigation

MTBE Litigation

As of May 1, 2006, we were named as a defendant in 70 cases alleging liability related to MTBE contamination in groundwater. The plaintiffs
are generally water providers, governmental authorities and private water companies alleging that refiners and marketers of MTBE and gasoline
containing MTBE are liable for manufacturing or distributing a defective product. We have been named in these suits together with many other
refining industry companies. We are being sued primarily as a refiner and marketer of MTBE and gasoline containing MTBE. We do not own or
operate gasoline station facilities in most of the geographic locations in which damage is alleged to have occurred. The suits generally seek
individual, unquantified compensatory and punitive damages, injunctive relief and attorneys� fees. All but one of the cases are pending in federal
court and will be consolidated for pre-trial proceedings in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York (Multi-District
Litigation Docket No. 1358, In re: Methyl-Tertiary Butyl Ether Products Liability Litigation). Valero agreed to settle the one remaining state
court case for an immaterial amount. This agreement is subject to court approval. Four of the cases Valero is involved in have been selected by
the court as focus cases for discovery and pre-trial motions. Activity in the �non-focus� cases is generally stayed pending certain determinations in
the focus cases. We believe that we have strong defenses to these claims and are vigorously defending the cases. We believe that an adverse
result in any one of these suits would not have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position. However, we believe that an
adverse result in all or a substantial number of these cases could have a material effect on our results of operations and financial
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position. An estimate of the possible loss or range of loss from an adverse result in all or substantially all of these cases cannot reasonably be
made.

Rosolowski v. Clark Refining & Marketing, Inc., et al., Judicial Circuit Court, Cook County, Illinois (Case No. 95-L 014703). We assumed this
class action lawsuit in the Premcor Acquisition. This lawsuit, filed October 11, 1995, relates in part to a release to the atmosphere of spent
catalyst containing low levels of heavy metals from the now-closed Blue Island, Illinois refinery on October 7, 1994. The release resulted in the
temporary evacuation of certain areas near the refinery. The case was certified as a class action in 2000 with three classes: (i) persons
purportedly affected by the October 7, 1994 catalyst release, but with no permanent health effects; (ii) persons with medical expenses for
dependents purportedly affected by the October 7, 1994 release; and (iii) local residents claiming property damage or who have suffered loss of
use and enjoyment of their property over a period of several years. Following three weeks of trial, on November 21, 2005, the jury returned a
verdict for the plaintiffs of $80.1 million in compensatory damages and $40 million in punitive damages. In January 2006, we filed motions for
new trial, remittitur and judgment notwithstanding the verdict, citing, among other things, rampant misconduct by plaintiffs� counsel and
improper class certification. We plan to pursue all of our appeals remedies, and we believe that we will prevail in reversing the verdict or
reducing the jury�s award of damages. Accordingly, we do not believe that this matter will have a material effect on our financial position or
results of operations.

Other Litigation

We are also a party to additional claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that there is only a remote
likelihood that future costs related to known contingent liabilities related to these legal proceedings would have a material adverse impact on our
consolidated results of operations or financial position.

16. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In conjunction with the Premcor Acquisition on September 1, 2005, Valero Energy Corporation has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the
following debt of The Premcor Refining Group Inc. (PRG), a wholly owned subsidiary of Valero Energy Corporation:

� 9.25% senior notes due February 2010,

� 6.75% senior notes due February 2011,

� 6.125% senior notes due May 2011,

� 9.5% senior notes due February 2013,

� 6.75% senior notes due May 2014, and

� 7.5% senior notes due June 2015.
In addition, PRG has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all of the outstanding debt issued by Valero Energy Corporation.
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The following condensed consolidating financial information is provided for Valero and PRG as an alternative to providing separate financial
statements for PRG for the periods subsequent to the Premcor Acquisition. The accounts for all companies reflected herein are presented using
the equity method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2006

(unaudited, in millions)

Valero

Energy

Corporation PRG

Other

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $ 80 $ 3 $ 353 $ �  $ 436
Restricted cash 22 2 6 �  30
Receivables, net 1 66 3,048 �  3,115
Inventories �  425 3,956 �  4,381
Income tax receivable �  492 �  (492) �  
Deferred income taxes �  �  228 (83) 145
Prepaid expenses and other �  8 66 �  74

Total current assets 103 996 7,657 (575) 8,181

Property, plant and equipment, at cost �  5,057 16,074 �  21,131
Accumulated depreciation �  (78) (2,629) �  (2,707)

Property, plant and equipment, net �  4,979 13,445 �  18,424

Intangible assets, net �  4 285 �  289
Goodwill �  2,526 2,398 �  4,924
Investment in Valero Energy affiliates 2,420 857 304 (3,581) �  
Long-term notes receivable from affiliates 17,448 �  �  (17,448) �  
Investment in Valero L.P. �  �  326 �  326
Deferred charges and other assets, net 120 174 865 �  1,159

Total assets $ 20,091 $ 9,536 $ 25,280 $ (21,604) $ 33,303

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ �  $ �  $ 3 $ �  $ 3
Accounts payable 126 330 5,711 �  6,167
Accrued expenses 118 75 201 �  394
Taxes other than income taxes �  7 480 �  487
Income taxes payable 142 �  467 (492) 117
Deferred income taxes �  359 �  (83) 276

Total current liabilities 386 771 6,862 (575) 7,444

3,568 1,521 46 �  5,135
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Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less current
portion

Long-term notes payable to affiliates �  5,455 11,993 (17,448) �  

Deferred income taxes 63 1,280 2,413 �  3,756

Other long-term liabilities 676 205 689 �  1,570

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock 53 �  �  �  53
Common stock 6 �  2 (2) 6
Additional paid-in capital 7,952 100 1,811 (1,911) 7,952
Treasury stock (420) �  �  �  (420)
Retained earnings 7,484 204 1,464 (1,668) 7,484
Accumulated other comprehensive income 323 �  �  �  323

Total stockholders� equity 15,398 304 3,277 (3,581) 15,398

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 20,091 $ 9,536 $ 25,280 $ (21,604) $ 33,303
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005

(in millions)

Valero

Energy

Corporation PRG

Other

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $ 11 $ 5 $ 420 $ �  $ 436
Restricted cash 22 2 6 �  30
Receivables, net 1 447 3,494 (378) 3,564
Inventories �  380 3,659 �  4,039
Deferred income taxes �  �  195 (53) 142
Prepaid expenses and other �  7 58 �  65

Total current assets 34 841 7,832 (431) 8,276

Property, plant and equipment, at cost �  4,821 15,567 �  20,388
Accumulated depreciation �  (43) (2,489) �  (2,532)

Property, plant and equipment, net �  4,778 13,078 �  17,856

Intangible assets, net �  4 294 �  298
Goodwill �  2,528 2,398 �  4,926
Investment in Valero Energy affiliates 1,697 705 100 (2,502) �  
Long-term notes receivable from affiliates 17,981 �  �  (17,981) �  
Investment in Valero L.P. �  �  327 �  327
Deferred charges and other assets, net 118 133 836 (42) 1,045

Total assets $ 19,830 $ 8,989 $ 24,865 $ (20,956) $ 32,728

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 220 $ �  $ 2 $ �  $ 222
Accounts payable 96 374 5,093 �  5,563
Accrued expenses 71 116 394 �  581
Taxes other than income taxes �  23 572 �  595
Income taxes payable 53 �  364 (378) 39
Deferred income taxes �  358 �  (53) 305

Total current liabilities 440 871 6,425 (431) 7,305

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less current
portion 3,584 1,525 47 �  5,156
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Long-term notes payable to affiliates �  5,073 12,908 (17,981) �  

Deferred income taxes 53 1,212 2,350 �  3,615

Other long-term liabilities 661 208 733 �  1,602

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock 68 �  �  �  68
Common stock 6 �  2 (2) 6
Additional paid-in capital 8,206 100 1,811 (1,953) 8,164
Treasury stock (196) �  �  �  (196)
Retained earnings 6,673 �  589 (589) 6,673
Accumulated other comprehensive income 335 �  �  �  335

Total stockholders� equity 15,092 100 2,402 (2,544) 15,050

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 19,830 $ 8,989 $ 24,865 $ (20,956) $ 32,728
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

(unaudited, in millions)

Valero

Energy

Corporation PRG

Other

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Operating revenues $ �  $ 5,610 $ 20,718 $ (5,387) $ 20,941

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales �  5,141 18,328 (5,387) 18,082
Refining operating expenses �  223 703 �  926
Retail selling expenses �  �  189 �  189
General and administrative expenses �  15 136 �  151
Depreciation and amortization expense �  43 217 �  260

Total costs and expenses �  5,422 19,573 (5,387) 19,608

Operating income �  188 1,145 �  1,333
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 723 152 204 (1,079) �  
Equity in earnings of Valero L.P. �  �  12 �  12
Other income, net 311 19 141 (471) �  
Interest and debt expense:
Incurred (88) (159) (320) 471 (96)
Capitalized �  14 23 �  37

Income before income tax expense 946 214 1,205 (1,079) 1,286
Income tax expense (1) 97 10 330 �  437

Net income 849 204 875 (1,079) 849
Preferred stock dividends 1 �  �  �  1

Net income applicable to common stock $ 848 $ 204 $ 875 $ (1,079) $ 848

(1) The income tax expense reflected in each column does not include any tax effect of the equity in earnings of subsidiaries.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

(unaudited, in millions)

Valero

Energy

Corporation PRG

Other

Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 286 $ (102) $ 1,556 $ �  $ 1,740

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures �  (235) (540) �  (775)
Deferred turnaround and catalyst costs �  (50) (149) �  (199)
Contingent payments in connection with acquisitions �  �  (50) �  (50)
Net intercompany receipts 510 �  �  (510) �  
Other investing activities, net �  4 7 �  11

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 510 (281) (732) (510) (1,013)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance costs �  �  31 �  31
Long-term debt repayments (220) �  (31) �  (251)
Purchase of treasury stock (590) �  �  �  (590)
Net intercompany borrowings (repayments) �  381 (891) 510 �  
Other financing activities, net 83 �  �  �  83

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (727) 381 (891) 510 (727)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash �  �  �  �  �  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary cash
investments 69 (2) (67) �  �  
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 11 5 420 �  436

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period $ 80 $ 3 $ 353 $ �  $ 436
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q, including without limitation our discussion below under the heading �Results of Operations - Outlook,� includes forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. You can
identify our forward-looking statements by the words �anticipate,� �believe,� �expect,� �plan,� �intend,� �estimate,� �project,� �projection,� �predict,� �budget,�
�forecast,� �goal,� �guidance,� �target,� �will,� �could,� �should,� �may� and similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements regarding:

� the synergies and accretion to reported earnings estimated to result from the Premcor Acquisition and level of costs and expenses to be
incurred by us in connection with the Premcor Acquisition;

� various actions to be taken or requirements to be met in connection with integrating Valero and Premcor after the Premcor
Acquisition;

� our revenue, income and operations after the Premcor Acquisition;

� future refining margins, including gasoline and distillate margins;

� future retail margins, including gasoline, diesel, home heating oil and convenience store merchandise margins;

� expectations regarding feedstock costs, including crude oil discounts, and operating expenses;

� anticipated levels of crude oil and refined product inventories;

� our anticipated level of capital investments, including deferred refinery turnaround and catalyst costs and capital expenditures for
environmental and other purposes, and the effect of those capital investments on our results of operations;

� anticipated trends in the supply of and demand for crude oil and other feedstocks and refined products in the United States, Canada
and elsewhere;

� expectations regarding environmental and other regulatory initiatives; and

� the effect of general economic and other conditions on refining and retail industry fundamentals.
We based our forward-looking statements on our current expectations, estimates and projections about ourselves and our industry. We caution
that these statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that we cannot predict. In
addition, we based many of these forward-looking statements on assumptions about future events that may prove to be inaccurate. Accordingly,
our actual results may differ materially from the future performance that we have expressed or forecast in the forward-looking statements.
Differences between actual results and any future performance suggested in these forward-looking statements could result from a variety of
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factors, including the following:

� expected cost savings from the Premcor Acquisition may not be fully realized or realized within the expected time frame, and costs or
expenses relating to the Premcor Acquisition may be higher than expected;

� revenues or margins following the Premcor Acquisition may be lower than expected;

� costs or difficulties related to the integration of the businesses of Valero and Premcor may be greater than expected;

� acts of terrorism aimed at either our facilities or other facilities that could impair our ability to produce or transport refined products or
receive feedstocks;

� political and economic conditions in nations that consume refined products, including the United States, and in crude oil producing
regions, including the Middle East and South America;
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� the domestic and foreign supplies of refined products such as gasoline, diesel fuel, jet fuel, home heating oil and petrochemicals;

� the domestic and foreign supplies of crude oil and other feedstocks;

� the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree on and to maintain crude oil price and
production controls;

� the level of consumer demand, including seasonal fluctuations;

� refinery overcapacity or undercapacity;

� the actions taken by competitors, including both pricing and the expansion and retirement of refining capacity in response to market
conditions;

� environmental and other regulations at both the state and federal levels and in foreign countries;

� the level of foreign imports of refined products;

� accidents or other unscheduled shutdowns affecting our refineries, machinery, pipelines or equipment, or those of our suppliers or
customers;

� changes in the cost or availability of transportation for feedstocks and refined products;

� the price, availability and acceptance of alternative fuels and alternative-fuel vehicles;

� cancellation of or failure to implement planned capital projects and realize the various assumptions and benefits projected for such
projects or cost overruns in constructing such planned capital projects;

� earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes and irregular weather, which can unforeseeably affect the price or availability of natural gas, crude
oil and other feedstocks and refined products;

� rulings, judgments or settlements in litigation or other legal or regulatory matters, including unexpected environmental remediation
costs in excess of any reserves or insurance coverage;

� legislation or regulatory action, including the introduction or enactment of federal, state or foreign legislation or rulemakings, which
may adversely affect our business or operations;
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� changes in the credit ratings assigned to our debt securities and trade credit;

� changes in currency exchange rates, including the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar; and

� overall economic conditions.
Any one of these factors, or a combination of these factors, could materially affect our future results of operations and whether any
forward-looking statements ultimately prove to be accurate. Our forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and
actual results and future performance may differ materially from those suggested in any forward-looking statements. We do not intend to update
these statements unless we are required by the securities laws to do so.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their
entirety by the foregoing. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to any such forward-looking statements that
may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Overview

Our operations are affected by:

� company-specific factors, primarily refinery utilization rates and refinery maintenance turnarounds;

� seasonal factors, such as the demand for refined products; and

� industry factors, such as movements in and the level of crude oil prices including the effect of quality differential between grades of
crude oil, the demand for and prices of refined products, industry supply capacity and competitor refinery maintenance turnarounds.

Our profitability is substantially determined by the spread between the price of refined products and the price of crude oil, referred to as the
�refined product margin.� Since up to 70% of our total crude oil throughput represents sour crude oil and acidic sweet crude oil feedstocks that are
purchased at prices less than sweet crude oil, our profitability is also significantly affected by the spread between sweet crude oil and sour crude
oil prices, referred to as the �sour crude oil discount.� The strong industry fundamentals we experienced throughout 2005 continued during the first
quarter of 2006. During the first quarter of 2006, heavy industry-wide turnaround activity, the implementation of more restrictive sulfur
regulations on gasoline and diesel, increased use of ethanol in the reformulated gasoline pool, and limited capacity expansions due to the high
cost of environmental regulations resulted in tighter supplies of refined products and continuing strong margins. We also continued to benefit
from the addition of the four Premcor refineries, which generated approximately $430 million of operating income with average throughput
volumes of 736,000 barrels per day during the first quarter of 2006. The strong gasoline and distillate margins combined with the higher
throughput volumes due to the Premcor Acquisition contributed to a significant increase in operating results in the first quarter of 2006
compared to the prior year, resulting in earnings per share of $1.32 for the first quarter of 2006, or a 38% increase over the $0.96 earnings per
share reported for the first quarter of 2005.

During the first quarter of 2006, we had major planned turnaround activities at several of our refineries. The incremental throughput volumes
from the Premcor refineries were partially offset by reduced throughput volumes resulting from these turnarounds.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

First Quarter 2006 Compared to First Quarter 2005

Financial Highlights

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 (a) 2005 Change

Operating revenues (b) $ 20,941 $ 14,953 $ 5,988

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales (b) 18,082 13,072 5,010
Refining operating expenses 926 580 346
Retail selling expenses 189 172 17
General and administrative expenses 151 104 47
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Refining 231 153 78
Retail 20 18 2
Corporate 9 8 1

Total costs and expenses 19,608 14,107 5,501

Operating income 1,333 846 487
Equity in earnings of Valero L.P. 12 9 3
Other expense, net �  (2) 2
Interest and debt expense:
Incurred (96) (74) (22)
Capitalized 37 11 26

Income before income tax expense 1,286 790 496
Income tax expense 437 256 181

Net income 849 534 315
Preferred stock dividends 1 4 (3)

Net income applicable to common stock $ 848 $ 530 $ 318

Earnings per common share � assuming dilution $ 1.32 $ 0.96 $ 0.36

See the footnote references on page 34.
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Operating Highlights

(millions of dollars, except per barrel and per gallon amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006
(a) 2005 Change

Refining:
Operating income $ 1,472 $ 944 $ 528
Throughput margin per barrel (c) $ 10.11 $ 8.40 $ 1.71
Operating costs per barrel:
Refining operating expenses $ 3.56 $ 2.90 $ 0.66
Depreciation and amortization 0.89 0.77 0.12

Total operating costs per barrel $ 4.45 $ 3.67 $ 0.78

Throughput volumes (thousand barrels per day):
Feedstocks:
Heavy sour crude 765 520 245
Medium/light sour crude 553 596 (43)
Acidic sweet crude 66 106 (40)
Sweet crude 875 545 330
Residuals 155 116 39
Other feedstocks 182 121 61

Total feedstocks 2,596 2,004 592
Blendstocks and other 294 216 78

Total throughput volumes 2,890 2,220 670

Yields (thousand barrels per day):
Gasolines and blendstocks 1,403 1,009 394
Distillates 909 685 224
Petrochemicals 89 72 17
Other products (d) 494 464 30

Total yields 2,895 2,230 665

Retail � U.S.:
Operating income $ �  $ (13) $ 13
Company-operated fuel sites (average) 996 1,036 (40)
Fuel volumes (gallons per day per site) 4,882 4,647 235
Fuel margin per gallon $ 0.100 $ 0.068 $ 0.032
Merchandise sales $ 219 $ 214 $ 5
Merchandise margin (percentage of sales) 29.7% 29.2% 0.5%
Margin on miscellaneous sales $ 37 $ 28 $ 9
Retail selling expenses $ 133 $ 120 $ 13
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 13 $ 13 $ �  

Retail � Northeast:
Operating income $ 21 $ 27 $ (6)
Fuel volumes (thousand gallons per day) 3,284 3,350 (66)
Fuel margin per gallon $ 0.225 $ 0.227 $ (0.002)
Merchandise sales $ 36 $ 33 $ 3
Merchandise margin (percentage of sales) 27.9% 25.6% 2.3%
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Margin on miscellaneous sales $ 8 $ 8 $ �  
Retail selling expenses $ 56 $ 52 $ 4
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 7 $ 5 $ 2

See the footnote references on page 34.
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Refining Operating Highlights by Region (e)

(millions of dollars, except per barrel amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 (a) 2005 Change

Gulf Coast:
Operating income $ 1,003 $ 628 $ 375
Throughput volumes (thousand barrels per day) (f) 1,512 1,253 259
Throughput margin per barrel (c) $ 11.40 $ 8.98 $ 2.42
Operating costs per barrel:
Refining operating expenses $ 3.18 $ 2.76 $ 0.42
Depreciation and amortization 0.85 0.66 0.19

Total operating costs per barrel $ 4.03 $ 3.42 $ 0.61

Mid-Continent (g):
Operating income $ 101 $ 35 $ 66
Throughput volumes (thousand barrels per day) (f) 504 291 213
Throughput margin per barrel (c) $ 6.56 $ 5.13 $ 1.43
Operating costs per barrel:
Refining operating expenses $ 3.64 $ 3.11 $ 0.53
Depreciation and amortization 0.69 0.69 �  

Total operating costs per barrel $ 4.33 $ 3.80 $ 0.53

Northeast:
Operating income $ 179 $ 73 $ 106
Throughput volumes (thousand barrels per day) (f) 575 377 198
Throughput margin per barrel (c) $ 8.50 $ 5.59 $ 2.91
Operating costs per barrel:
Refining operating expenses $ 4.11 $ 2.63 $ 1.48
Depreciation and amortization 0.93 0.80 0.13

Total operating costs per barrel $ 5.04 $ 3.43 $ 1.61

West Coast:
Operating income $ 189 $ 208 $ (19)
Throughput volumes (thousand barrels per day) 299 299 �  
Throughput margin per barrel (c) $ 12.61 $ 12.67 $ (0.06)
Operating costs per barrel:
Refining operating expenses $ 4.29 $ 3.66 $ 0.63
Depreciation and amortization 1.31 1.26 0.05

Total operating costs per barrel $ 5.60 $ 4.92 $ 0.68

See the footnote references on page 34.
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Average Market Reference Prices and Differentials (h)

(dollars per barrel)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2006 2005 Change

Feedstocks:
West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude oil $ 63.29 $ 49.70 $ 13.59
WTI less sour crude oil at U.S. Gulf Coast (i) 7.98 8.06 (0.08)
WTI less Alaska North Slope (ANS) crude oil 2.41 4.85 (2.44)
WTI less Maya crude oil 15.61 17.08 (1.47)

Products:
U.S. Gulf Coast:
Conventional 87 gasoline less WTI 8.00 5.86 2.14
No. 2 fuel oil less WTI 8.85 7.36 1.49
Propylene less WTI 7.14 22.17 (15.03)
U.S. Mid-Continent:
Conventional 87 gasoline less WTI 8.08 7.25 0.83
Low-sulfur diesel less WTI 13.27 9.24 4.03
U.S. Northeast:
Conventional 87 gasoline less WTI 6.76 4.93 1.83
No. 2 fuel oil less WTI 9.03 9.34 (0.31)
Lube oils less WTI 46.92 26.15 20.77
U.S. West Coast:
CARBOB 87 gasoline less ANS 15.21 19.12 (3.91)
Low-sulfur diesel less ANS 19.56 18.03 1.53

The following notes relate to references on pages 31 through 34.

a. Includes the operations related to the Premcor Acquisition, which was effective on September 1, 2005.
b. Operating revenues and cost of sales both include approximately $1.2 billion for the three months ended March 31, 2005 related to certain

crude oil buy/sell arrangements, which involve linked purchases and sales related to crude oil contracts entered into to address location,
quality or grade requirements. Commencing January 1, 2006, we adopted EITF Issue No. 04-13 which requires that such buy/sell
arrangements be accounted for as one transaction, thereby resulting in no recognition of revenues and cost of sales for these transactions.

c. Throughput margin per barrel represents operating revenues less cost of sales divided by throughput volumes.
d. Other products primarily include gas oils, No. 6 fuel oil, petroleum coke and asphalt.
e. The regions reflected herein contain the following refineries subsequent to the Premcor Acquisition: the Gulf Coast refining region

includes the Corpus Christi East, Corpus Christi West, Texas City, Houston, Three Rivers, Krotz Springs, St. Charles, Aruba and
Port Arthur Refineries; the Mid-Continent refining region includes the McKee, Ardmore, Memphis and Lima Refineries; the
Northeast refining region includes the Quebec, Paulsboro and Delaware City Refineries; and the West Coast refining region
includes the Benicia and Wilmington Refineries. The Mid-Continent region also included the Denver Refinery prior to its
disposition on May 31, 2005.

f. Throughput volumes for the Gulf Coast, Mid-Continent and Northeast regions for the three months ended March 31, 2006 include
295,000, 247,000 and 194,000 barrels per day, respectively, related to the operations of the refineries acquired from Premcor on
September 1, 2005.

g. For the three months ended March 31, 2005, the information presented for the Mid-Continent region includes the operations of the Denver
Refinery, which was sold on May 31, 2005 to Suncor Energy (U.S.A.) Inc. Throughput volumes for the Mid-Continent region for the first
quarter of 2005 include 40,000 barrels per day related to the Denver Refinery.

h. The average market reference prices and differentials, with the exception of the propylene and lube oil differentials, are based on posted
prices from Platt�s Oilgram. The propylene differential is based on posted propylene prices in Chemical Market Associates, Inc. and the
lube oil differential is based on Exxon Mobil Corporation postings provided by Independent Commodity Information Services-London Oil
Reports. The average market reference prices and differentials are presented to provide users of the consolidated financial statements with
economic indicators that significantly affect our operations and profitability.

i. The market reference differential for sour crude oil is based on 50% Arab Medium and 50% Arab Light posted prices.
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General

Operating revenues increased 40% for the first quarter of 2006 compared to the first quarter of 2005 primarily as a result of significantly higher
refined product prices combined with additional throughput volumes from the former Premcor refinery operations. Operating income and net
income for the three months ended March 31, 2006 increased significantly compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005. Operating
income increased $487 million, or 58%, and net income increased $315 million, or 59%, from the first quarter of 2005 to the first quarter of
2006 primarily due to a $528 million increase in refining segment operating income and a $7 million increase in retail operating income,
partially offset by a $48 million increase in general and administrative expenses (including corporate depreciation and amortization expense).

Refining

Operating income for our refining segment increased from $944 million for the first quarter of 2005 to $1.5 billion for the first quarter of 2006,
resulting from a 30% increase in throughput volumes and an increase in refining throughput margin of $1.71 per barrel, or 20%, partially offset
by increased refining operating expenses (including depreciation and amortization expense) of $424 million.

Refining total throughput margin for the first quarter of 2006 increased primarily due to the following factors:

� Throughput volumes increased 670,000 barrels per day in the first quarter of 2006 compared to the first quarter of 2005 due to the
736,000 barrel per day incremental throughput from the four Premcor refineries, offset to some extent by the sale of the Denver
Refinery in 2005 and major planned turnaround activities at several of our refineries.

� Overall gasoline and distillate margins increased in the first quarter of 2006 compared to the first quarter of 2005. The continued
strength of refined product margins for the first quarter of 2006 was primarily due to increased foreign and U.S. demand, major
industry turnaround activity, and continuing outages from last season�s hurricanes.

Partially offsetting the above increases in throughput margin were lower margins on other refined products such as petroleum coke, sulfur and
propylene due to a significant increase in the price of crude oil from the first quarter of 2005 to the first quarter of 2006. In addition, discounts
on sour crude oil feedstocks during the first quarter of 2006 decreased slightly compared to the very strong discounts in the first quarter of 2005,
but remained wide due to continued ample supplies of sour crude oils and heavy sour residual fuel oils on the world market. Discounts on sour
crude oil feedstocks also continued to benefit from increased demand for sweet crude oil resulting from the lower sulfur specifications in
gasoline and a global increase in refined product demand, particularly in Asia, which has resulted in higher utilization rates by refineries that
require sweet crude oil as feedstock.

Refining operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization expense, were 60% higher for the quarter ended March 31, 2006
compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2005, due primarily to the Premcor Acquisition on September 1, 2005 and increases in maintenance
expense, employee compensation and related benefits, catalyst and chemicals, and outside services. Refining depreciation and amortization
expense increased 51% from the first quarter of 2005 to the first quarter of 2006 primarily due to the Premcor Acquisition, increased turnaround
and catalyst amortization, and the implementation of new capital projects.
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Retail

Retail operating income was $21 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2006 compared to $14 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2005.
This 50% increase in operating income was primarily attributable to increased domestic fuel volumes combined with higher U.S. retail fuel
margins. This increase in operating income was partially offset by increased selling expenses in our retail operations mainly as a result of higher
credit card processing fees attributable to higher retail fuel prices.

Corporate Expenses and Other

General and administrative expenses, including corporate depreciation and amortization expense, increased $48 million from the first quarter of
2005 to the first quarter of 2006. The increase was primarily due to increases in employee compensation and benefits, expenses in 2006
attributable to Premcor headquarters personnel, and the favorable resolution of a California excise tax dispute in the first quarter of 2005.

Interest and debt expense incurred increased from the first quarter of 2005 to the first quarter of 2006 primarily as a result of interest expense
incurred on the debt assumed in the Premcor Acquisition. However, the increased interest incurred was more than offset by increased capitalized
interest due to an increase in capital projects, including those at the four former Premcor refineries.

Income tax expense increased $181 million from the first quarter of 2005 to the first quarter of 2006 mainly as a result of higher operating
income. Our effective tax rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2006 increased from the quarter ended March 31, 2005 as a lower percentage of
our pre-tax income was contributed by the Aruba Refinery, the operations of which are non-taxable in Aruba through December 31, 2010.

OUTLOOK

Since the end of the first quarter of 2006, refining industry fundamentals have remained positive, resulting in a continuation of favorable refined
product margins and sour crude oil discounts. For example, Gulf Coast gasoline margins for April 2006 averaged $23 per barrel compared to
$12 per barrel in April 2005 and low-sulfur diesel margins averaged nearly $19 per barrel in April 2006 compared to $11 per barrel a year ago.
Thus far during 2006, domestic gasoline demand has increased slightly compared to the same period in 2005. We believe refined product
margins will remain favorable for the remainder of 2006 due to sustained refined product demand and supply constraints resulting from
changing specifications for gasoline and diesel.

Sour crude oil discounts remained wide during the month of April 2006 and are expected to remain favorable through the summer due to ample
supplies of sour crude oil and continued strong demand for sweet crude oil. As light product demand has grown, worldwide refinery production
rates have also increased, leading to higher production of residual fuel oil (resid) as a by-product of the refining process. Because resid can
compete with certain heavy sour crude oils as a refinery feedstock, this also serves to widen the discounts for heavy sour crude oils. The global
movement to lower-sulfur fuels has contributed to increased demand for sweet crude oils rather than sour crude oils to meet those more stringent
specifications. In addition, higher light product margins increase sweet crude oil demand because sweet crude oils have a higher yield of light
products.

Operationally, we expect to benefit during the remainder of 2006 from the completion of significant first quarter turnaround and capital
improvement projects, as well as additional strategic projects that we expect to complete during the remainder of 2006, including a 75,000
barrel-per-day expansion project at
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our Port Arthur Refinery. In addition, we will benefit during 2006 from the full-year effect of the approximate 800,000 barrels per day of
throughput capacity from the Premcor Acquisition.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Net cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2006 was $1.7 billion compared to $804 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in cash generated from operating activities was due primarily to the significant increase in operating
income discussed above under �Results of Operations� and $537 million of cash provided by working capital changes in the first quarter of 2006.
Changes in cash provided by or used for working capital during the first three months of 2006 and 2005 are shown in Note 10 of Condensed
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Working capital was positively impacted in the first quarter of 2006 by timing differences in the
billing and collection of accounts receivable in March 2006 compared to December 2005.

The net cash generated from operating activities during the first quarter of 2006, combined with $32 million of proceeds from the issuance of
common stock related to our benefit plans and an $89 million benefit from tax deductions in excess of recognized stock compensation cost were
used mainly to:

� fund $974 million of capital expenditures and deferred turnaround and catalyst costs,

� make scheduled debt repayments of $220 million,

� purchase 10.7 million shares of treasury stock at a cost of $590 million,

� fund a contingent earn-out payment in connection with the acquisition of the St. Charles Refinery of $50 million, and

� pay common and preferred stock dividends of $38 million.
As discussed above, net cash provided by operating activities during the first three months of 2005 was $804 million. The net cash generated
from operating activities, combined with $26 million of proceeds from the issuance of common stock related to our benefit plans and
$178 million of available cash on hand, were used to:

� fund $445 million of capital expenditures and deferred turnaround and catalyst costs,

� make scheduled debt repayments of $196 million and early debt repurchases of $82 million,

� purchase 5.6 million shares of treasury stock at a cost of $177 million,

� fund a contingent earn-out payment in connection with the acquisition of the St. Charles Refinery of $50 million,

� fund the acquisition of four asphalt terminals for $35 million, and
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� pay common and preferred stock dividends of $22 million.
Capital Investments

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, we expended $775 million for capital expenditures and $199 million for deferred turnaround
and catalyst costs. Capital expenditures for the three months ended March 31, 2006 included $398 million of costs related to environmental
projects.

In connection with our acquisitions of Basis Petroleum, Inc. in 1997 and the St. Charles Refinery in 2003, the sellers are entitled to receive
payments in any of the ten years and seven years, respectively, following these acquisitions if certain average refining margins during any of
those years exceed a specified level. In connection with the Premcor Acquisition in 2005, we assumed Premcor�s obligation under an earn-out
contingency agreement related to Premcor�s acquisition of the Delaware City Refinery from Motiva Enterprises LLC (Motiva). Under this
agreement, Motiva is entitled to receive two separate annual earn-out contingency payments depending on (a) the amount of crude oil processed
at the refinery and the level
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of refining margins through May 2007, and (b) the achievement of certain performance criteria at the gasification facility through May 2006.
Any payments due under these earn-out arrangements are limited based on annual and aggregate limits. In January 2006, we made an earn-out
payment of $50 million related to the St. Charles Refinery. Based on margin levels through April 2006, earn-out payments of $26 million (the
maximum remaining payment based on the aggregate limitation under the agreement) related to the acquisition of Basis Petroleum, Inc. and $25
million related to the acquisition of the Delaware City Refinery will be due in the second quarter of 2006.

For 2006, we expect to incur approximately $3.5 billion for capital investments, including approximately $3.0 billion for capital expenditures
(approximately $1.4 billion of which is for environmental projects) and approximately $520 million for deferred turnaround and catalyst costs.
The capital expenditure estimate excludes anticipated expenditures related to the earn-out contingency agreements discussed above and strategic
acquisitions. We continuously evaluate our capital budget and make changes as economic conditions warrant.

Contractual Obligations

As of March 31, 2006, our contractual obligations included long-term debt, capital lease obligations, operating leases and purchase obligations.
Except as discussed below, there were no significant changes to our contractual obligations during the three months ended March 31, 2006.

During March 2006, we made a scheduled debt repayment of $220 million related to our 7.375% notes.

As of March 31, 2006, our short-term and long-term purchase obligations increased by approximately $1.5 billion from the amount reported as
of December 31, 2005, resulting primarily from both new crude oil supply contracts entered into in the first quarter of 2006 and higher crude oil
prices as of March 31, 2006.

Our agreements do not have rating agency triggers that would automatically require us to post additional collateral. However, in the event of
certain downgrades of our senior unsecured debt to below investment grade ratings by Moody�s Investors Service and Standard & Poor�s Ratings
Services, the cost of borrowings under some of our bank credit facilities and other arrangements would increase. Following the completion of
the Premcor Acquisition, Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services affirmed its rating of our senior unsecured debt of BBB minus and recently
changed our outlook from negative to stable while Moody�s Investors Service affirmed our senior unsecured debt rating of Baa3 with a stable
outlook. In February 2006, Fitch Ratings upgraded its rating of our senior unsecured debt to BBB with a stable outlook.

Other Commercial Commitments

As of March 31, 2006, our committed lines of credit included:

Borrowing

Capacity Expiration
5-year revolving credit facility $ 2.5 billion August 2010
Canadian revolving credit facility Cdn. $ 115 million December 2010

As of March 31, 2006, we had $302 million of letters of credit outstanding under our uncommitted short-term bank credit facilities, $316 million
of letters of credit outstanding under our committed facilities and Cdn. $8 million of letters of credit outstanding under our Canadian facility.

As defined under our revolving bank credit facilities, our debt-to-capitalization ratio (net of cash) was 23.5% as of March 31, 2006 compared to
24.8% as of December 31, 2005.
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Proposed Sale of Investment in Valero L.P.

On March 31, 2006, Valero GP Holdings, LLC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Valero, filed a registration statement on Form S-1 with
the SEC for an initial public offering of approximately 37% of its units representing limited liability company interests. Subsidiaries of Valero
GP Holdings, LLC own the general partner interest, the incentive distribution rights and a 21.4% limited partner interest in Valero L.P. After this
initial public offering, if consummated, subsidiaries of Valero will hold an approximate 63% ownership interest in Valero GP Holdings, LLC. It
is our intention to further reduce and ultimately sell all of our interest in Valero GP Holdings, LLC, pending market conditions. We expect to use
funds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include acquisitions, stock repurchases and debt reduction.

Other

Although our expected minimum required contribution to our qualified pension plans during 2006 is less than $5 million under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act, we expect to contribute approximately $65 million to our qualified pension plans during 2006. During the first
quarter of 2006, we contributed $15 million to our qualified pension plans.

We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to the discharge of materials into
the environment, waste management, pollution prevention measures and characteristics and composition of gasolines and distillates. Because
environmental laws and regulations are becoming more complex and stringent and new environmental laws and regulations are continuously
being enacted or proposed, the level of future expenditures required for environmental matters could increase in the future. In addition, any
major upgrades in any of our refineries could require material additional expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations. For
additional information regarding our environmental matters, see Note 15 of Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the third quarter of 2005, certain of our refineries experienced business interruption losses associated with Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.
As a result of these losses, we have submitted claims to our insurance carriers under our insurance policies. No amounts related to these potential
business interruption insurance recoveries were recognized in our consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2006.

We believe that we have sufficient funds from operations and, to the extent necessary, from the public and private capital markets and bank
markets, to fund our ongoing operating requirements. We expect that, to the extent necessary, we can raise additional funds from time to time
through equity or debt financings. However, there can be no assurances regarding the availability of any future financings or whether such
financings can be made available on terms acceptable to us.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Accounts Receivable Sales Facility

As of March 31, 2006, we had an accounts receivable sales facility with a group of third-party financial institutions to sell on a revolving basis
up to $1 billion of eligible trade receivables, which matures in August 2008. As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the amount of
eligible receivables sold to the third-party financial institutions was $1 billion.

39

Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 55



Table of Contents

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Our critical accounting policies are disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

As discussed in Note 2 of Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, certain new financial accounting pronouncements have been
issued which either have already been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, or will become effective for our financial
statements at various dates in the future.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The following tables provide information about our derivative commodity instruments as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 (dollars in
millions, except for the weighted-average pay and receive prices as described below), including:

� fair value hedges which are used to hedge our recognized refining inventories (which had a carrying amount of $4.1 billion and
$3.8 billion as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, and a fair value of $8.3 billion and $7.1 billion as of
March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively) and unrecognized firm commitments (i.e. binding agreements to purchase
inventories in the future),

� cash flow hedges which are used to hedge our forecasted feedstock and product purchases, refined product sales and natural gas
purchases,

� economic hedges (hedges not designated as fair value or cash flow hedges) which are used to:

� manage price volatility in refinery feedstock and refined product inventories, and

� manage price volatility in forecasted feedstock and product purchases, refined product sales and natural gas purchases, and

� trading activities held or issued for trading purposes.
The gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated and qualifying as a fair value hedge and the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item are
recognized currently in income in the same period. The effective portion of the gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated and qualifying
as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of �other comprehensive income� and is recorded in income in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecasted transaction affects income. The remaining ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the cash flow derivative
instrument, if any, is recognized currently in income. For our economic hedges and for derivative instruments entered into by us for trading
purposes, the derivative instrument is recorded at fair value and changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recognized currently in
income.

The following tables include only open positions at the end of the reporting period, and therefore do not include amounts related to certain
closed cash flow hedges for which the gain or loss remains in �accumulated other comprehensive income� pending consummation of the
forecasted transactions.

Contract volumes are presented in thousands of barrels (for crude oil and refined products) or in billions of British thermal units (for natural
gas). The weighted-average pay and receive prices represent amounts per barrel (for crude oil and refined products) or amounts per million
British thermal units (for natural gas). Volumes shown for swaps represent notional volumes, which are used to calculate amounts due under the
agreements. For futures, the contract value represents the contract price of either the long or short position multiplied by the derivative contract
volume, while the market value amount represents the period-end market price of the commodity being hedged multiplied by the derivative
contract volume. The fair value for futures, swaps and options represents the fair value of the derivative contract. The fair value for swaps
represents the excess of the receive price over the pay price multiplied by the notional contract volumes. For futures and options, the fair value
represents (i) the excess of the market value amount over the contract amount for long positions, or (ii) the excess of the contract amount over
the market value amount for short positions. Additionally, for futures and options, the weighted-average pay price represents the contract price
for long positions and the weighted-average receive price represents the contract price for short positions. The weighted-average pay price and
weighted-average receive price for options represents their strike price.
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March 31, 2006

Contract

Volumes

Wtd Avg

Pay

Price

Wtd Avg

Receive

Price

Contract

Value

Market

Value

Pre-tax

Fair

Value
Fair Value Hedges:
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 24,638 $ 64.34 N/A $ 1,585 $ 1,655 $ 70
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 32,649 N/A $ 64.41 2,103 2,194 (91)

Cash Flow Hedges:
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 12,212 64.78 N/A 791 829 38
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 10,520 N/A 63.72 670 704 (34)

Economic Hedges:
Swaps � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 7,814 8.89 9.94 N/A 8 8
Swaps � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 4,164 19.50 18.21 N/A (5) (5)
2006 (natural gas) 3,150 0.03 0.01 N/A �  �  
2007 (natural gas) 150 8.90 8.90 N/A �  �  
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 56,604 67.92 N/A 3,845 3,980 135
2007 (crude oil and refined products) 11 81.33 N/A 1 1 �  
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 59,330 N/A 67.42 4,000 4,148 (148)
Options � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 42 N/A 72.35 �  �  �  

Trading Activities:
Swaps � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 1,450 7.88 9.10 N/A 2 2
Swaps � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 1,050 12.63 12.88 N/A �  �  
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 35,615 64.25 N/A 2,288 2,399 111
2006 (natural gas) 550 7.54 N/A 4 5 1
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 36,650 N/A 64.36 2,359 2,474 (115)
2006 (natural gas) 550 N/A 7.66 4 5 (1)
Options � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 5,000 47.44 N/A 2 8 6
Options � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 5,000 N/A 46.69 2 8 (6)

Total open position pre-tax fair value $ (29)
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December 31, 2005

Contract

Volumes

Wtd Avg

Pay

Price

Wtd Avg

Receive

Price

Contract

Value

Market

Value

Pre-tax

Fair

Value
Fair Value Hedges:
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 50,912 $ 59.03 N/A $ 3,005 $ 3,113 $ 108
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 64,422 N/A $ 59.87 3,857 3,958 (101)

Cash Flow Hedges:
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 18,179 62.24 N/A 1,131 1,152 21
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 13,690 N/A 60.51 828 849 (21)

Economic Hedges:
Swaps � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 7,947 8.12 8.81 N/A 5 5
2006 (natural gas) 2,700 11.37 9.19 N/A (6) (6)
Swaps � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 4,481 17.27 16.85 N/A (2) (2)
2006 (natural gas) 1,350 9.19 11.46 N/A 3 3
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 29,945 65.64 N/A 1,966 2,036 70
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 27,052 N/A 65.34 1,768 1,815 (47)
Options � long:
2006 (natural gas) 1,290 9.27 N/A (2) (1) 1
Options � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 190 N/A 72.95 (1) (1) �  
2006 (natural gas) 690 N/A 7.98 �  �  �  

Trading Activities:
Swaps � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 300 11.64 11.94 N/A �  �  
2006 (natural gas) 350 9.33 11.28 N/A 1 1
Swaps � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 1,350 12.66 13.17 N/A 1 1
2006 (natural gas) 350 11.28 9.18 N/A (1) (1)
Futures � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 12,266 60.01 N/A 736 763 27
2006 (natural gas) 840 8.03 N/A 6 9 3
Futures � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 10,816 N/A 60.49 654 678 (24)
2006 (natural gas) 840 N/A 8.34 7 9 (2)
Options � long:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 2,000 0.50 N/A �  �  �  
2006 (natural gas) 900 10.00 N/A �  �  �  
Options � short:
2006 (crude oil and refined products) 2,000 N/A 0.50 �  �  �  
2006 (natural gas) 900 N/A 10.00 �  �  �  

Total open position pre-tax fair value $ 36
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INTEREST RATE RISK

The following table provides information about our long-term debt and interest rate derivative instruments (dollars in millions), all of which are
sensitive to changes in interest rates. For long-term debt, principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity
dates are presented. For interest rate swaps, the table presents notional amounts and weighted-average interest rates by expected (contractual)
maturity dates. Notional amounts are used to calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contract. Weighted-average floating
rates are based on implied forward rates in the yield curve at the reporting date.

March 31, 2006
Expected Maturity Dates

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

There-

after Total

Fair

Value
Long-term
Debt:
Fixed rate $ �  $ 287 $ 6 $ 209 $ 208 $ 4,391 $ 5,101 $ 5,381
Average
interest
rate �  % 6.1% 6.0% 3.6% 8.9% 7.0% 6.9%

Interest
Rate
Swaps
Fixed to
Floating:
Notional
amount $ �  $ 225 $ �  $ 9 $ �  $ 641 $ 875 $ (44)
Average
pay rate

6.6% 6.6% &nbsed bank loans. The capacity of the credit facility may be increased to $1.250 billion prior to the maturity date at the Company�s election and subject to bank credit capacity and approval, may include up to $200 million in letters of credit, and may include up to $175 million in capital leases each fiscal year. Under the revolving credit facility, the Company may borrow funds consisting of Eurodollar loans or base rate loans. Interest accrues on Eurodollar loans at a defined Eurodollar rate, defined as LIBOR plus the applicable percentage, as defined in the revolving credit facility, depending upon the Company�s senior, unsecured, (non-credit enhanced) long-term debt rating. Interest accrues on base rate loans as defined in the credit facility. The Company also has the option to borrow funds under the terms of a swingline loan subfacility. The revolving credit facility expires in September 2016.

The revolving credit facility agreement requires that the Company�s consolidated interest coverage ratio as of the last day of each quarter shall be no less than 2.50:1. This ratio is defined as the ratio of (i) consolidated earnings before interest, taxes and rents to (ii) consolidated interest expense plus consolidated rents. The Company�s consolidated interest coverage ratio as of August 25, 2012 was 4.58:1.

In June 2010, the Company entered into a letter of credit facility that allows the Company to request the participating bank to issue letters of credit on the Company�s behalf up to an aggregate amount of $100 million. The letter of credit facility is in addition to the letters of credit that may be issued under the revolving credit facility. As of August 25, 2012, the Company has $98.7 million in letters of credit outstanding under the letter of credit facility, which expires in June 2013.

On April 24, 2012, the Company issued $500 million in 3.700% Senior Notes due April 2022 under the Company�s shelf registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2012 (the �Shelf Registration�). The Shelf Registration allows the Company to sell an indeterminate amount in debt securities to fund general corporate purposes, including repaying, redeeming or repurchasing outstanding debt and for working capital, capital expenditures, new store openings, stock repurchases and acquisitions. The Company used the proceeds from the issuance of debt to repay a portion of the commercial paper borrowings and for general corporate purposes.

On November 15, 2010, the Company issued $500 million in 4.000% Senior Notes due 2020 under a shelf registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 29, 2008. The Company used the proceeds from the issuance of debt to repay the principal due relating to the $199.3 million in 4.750% Senior Notes that matured on November 15, 2010, to repay a portion of the commercial paper borrowings and for general corporate purposes.

The 5.750% Senior Notes issued in July 2009 and the 6.500% and 7.125% Senior Notes issued during August 2008, (collectively, the �Notes�), are subject to an interest rate adjustment if the debt ratings assigned to the Notes are downgraded. The Notes, along with the 3.700% Senior Notes issued in April 2012 and the 4.000% Senior Notes issued in during November 2010, also contain a provision that repayment of the notes may be accelerated if the Company experiences a change in control (as defined in the agreements). The Company�s borrowings under its other senior notes contain minimal covenants, primarily restrictions on liens. Under the revolving credit facility, covenants include limitations on total indebtedness, restrictions on liens, a maximum debt to earnings ratio, and a change of control provision that may require acceleration of the repayment obligations under certain circumstances. These covenants are in addition to the consolidated interest coverage ratio discussed above. All of the repayment obligations under the borrowing arrangements may be accelerated and come due prior to the scheduled payment date if covenants are breached or an event of default occurs.
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As of August 25, 2012, the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to its borrowing arrangements. All of the Company�s debt is unsecured. Scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

(in thousands)
Scheduled
Maturities

2013 $ 968,302
2014 500,000
2015 500,000
2016 500,000
2017 �  
Thereafter 1,250,000

$ 3,718,302

The fair value of the Company�s debt was estimated at $4.055 billion as of August 25, 2012, and $3.633 billion as of August 27, 2011, based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current rates available to the Company for debt of the same terms (Level 2). Such fair value is greater than the carrying value of debt by $286.6 million and $281.0 million at August 25, 2012 and August 27, 2011, respectively.

Note J � Interest Expense

Net interest expense consisted of the following:

Year Ended

(in thousands)
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
August 28,

2010
Interest expense $ 178,547 $ 173,674 $ 162,628
Interest income (1,397) (2,058) (2,626) 
Capitalized interest (1,245) (1,059) (1,093) 

$ 175,905 $ 170,557 $ 158,909

Note K � Stock Repurchase Program

During 1998, the Company announced a program permitting the Company to repurchase a portion of its outstanding shares not to exceed a dollar maximum established by the Board. The program was last amended on March 7, 2012 to increase the repurchase authorization to $11.90 billion from $11.15 billion. From January 1998 to August 25, 2012, the Company has repurchased a total of 131.1 million shares at an aggregate cost of $11.5 billion.

The Company�s share repurchase activity consisted of the following:

Year Ended

(in thousands)
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
August 28,

2010
Amount $ 1,362,869 $ 1,466,802 $ 1,123,655
Shares 3,795 5,598 6,376

During the fiscal year 2012, the Company retired 4.9 million shares of treasury stock which had previously been repurchased under the Company�s share repurchase program. The retirement increased Retained deficit by $1,319.6 million and decreased Additional paid-in capital by $72.5 million. During the comparable prior year period, the Company retired 6.6 million shares of treasury stock, which increased Retained deficit by $1,247.7 million and decreased Additional paid-in capital by $82.2 million.
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Subsequent to August 25, 2012, the Board voted to increase the authorization by $750 million to raise the cumulative share repurchase authorization from $11.90 billion to $12.65 billion. We have repurchased 629,168 shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of $234.6 million during fiscal 2013.

Note L � Pension and Savings Plans

Prior to January 1, 2003, substantially all full-time employees were covered by a defined benefit pension plan. The benefits under the plan were based on years of service and the employee�s highest consecutive five-year average compensation. On January 1, 2003, the plan was frozen. Accordingly, pension plan participants will earn no new benefits under the plan formula and no new participants will join the pension plan.

On January 1, 2003, the Company�s supplemental defined benefit pension plan for certain highly compensated employees was also frozen. Accordingly, plan participants will earn no new benefits under the plan formula and no new participants will join the pension plan.

The Company has recognized the unfunded status of the defined pension plans in its Consolidated Balance Sheets, which represents the difference between the fair value of pension plan assets and the projected benefit obligations of its defined benefit pension plans. The net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service costs are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive loss. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic pension expense pursuant to the Company�s historical accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. Further, actuarial gains and losses that arise in subsequent periods and are not recognized as net periodic pension expense in the same periods will be recognized as a component of other comprehensive income. Those amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic pension expense on the same basis as the amounts previously recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The Company�s investment strategy for pension plan assets is to utilize a diversified mix of domestic and international equity and fixed income portfolios to earn a long-term investment return that meets the Company�s pension plan obligations. The pension plan assets are invested primarily in listed securities, and the pension plans hold only a minimal investment in AutoZone common stock that is entirely at the discretion of third-party pension fund investment managers. The Company�s largest holding classes, U.S. equities and fixed income bonds, are invested with a fund manager that holds diversified portfolios. Accordingly, the Company does not have any significant concentrations of risk in particular securities, issuers, sectors, industries or geographic regions. Alternative investment strategies are in the process of being liquidated and constitute less than 2% of the pension plan assets. The Company�s investment managers are prohibited from using derivatives for speculative purposes and are not permitted to use derivatives to leverage a portfolio.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Company�s investments measured at fair value:

U.S., international, emerging, and high yield equities � These investments are commingled funds and are valued using the net asset values, which are determined by valuing investments at the closing price or last trade reported on the major market on which the individual securities are traded. These investments are subject to annual audits.

Alternative investments � This category represents a hedge fund of funds made up of 16 different hedge fund managers diversified over 9 different hedge strategies. The fair value of the hedge fund of funds is determined using valuations provided by the third party administrator for each of the underlying funds.

Real estate � The valuation of these investments requires significant judgment due to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherent lack of liquidity and the long-term nature of such assets. These investments are valued based upon recommendations of our investment manager incorporating factors such as contributions and distributions, market transactions, and market comparables.

Fixed income securities � The fair values of corporate, U.S. government securities and other fixed income securities are estimated by using bid evaluation pricing models or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics.
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Cash and cash equivalents � These investments include cash equivalents valued using exchange rates provided by an industry pricing vendor and commingled funds valued using the net asset value. These investments also include cash.

The fair values of investments by level and asset category and the weighted-average asset allocations of the Company�s pension plans at the measurement date are presented in the following table:

August 25, 2012
Fair
Value

Asset Allocation Fair Value Hierarchy

(in thousands) Actual Target Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. equities $ 51,101 28.2% 30.0% $ �  $ 51,101 $ �  
International equities 31,767 17.5 20.0 �  31,767 �  
Emerging equities 16,471 9.1 10.0 �  16,471 �  
High yield equities 17,378 9.6 10.0 �  17,378 �  
Alternative investments 2,404 1.3 �  �  �  2,404
Fixed income securities 47,667 26.3 30.0 �  47,667 �  
Cash and cash equivalents 14,621 8.0 �  �  14,621 �  

$ 181,409 100.0% 100.0% $ �  $ 179,005 $ 2,404

August 27, 2011
Fair
Value

Asset Allocation Fair Value Hierarchy

(in thousands) Actual Target Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. equities $ 40,092 25.5% 30.0% $ �  $ 40,092 $ �  
International equities 28,378 18.1 20.0 �  28,378 �  
Emerging equities 12,086 7.7 10.0 �  12,086 �  
High yield equities 12,547 8.0 10.0 �  12,547 �  
Alternative investments 2,807 1.8 �  �  �  2,807
Real estate 2,474 1.6 �  �  �  2,474
Fixed income securities 27,321 17.4 30.0 �  27,321 �  
Cash and cash equivalents 31,178 19.9 �  �  31,178 �  

$ 156,883 100.0% 100.0% $ �  $ 151,602 $ 5,281

The August 25, 2012 actual asset allocation in the chart above includes an $8.7 million cash contribution made prior to August 25, 2012. Subsequent to August 25, 2012, this cash contribution was allocated to the pension plan investments in accordance with the targeted asset allocation.

In August 2011, the Company�s Investment Committee approved a revised asset allocation target for the investments held by the pension plan. Based on the revised asset allocation target, the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets changed from 8.0% in fiscal 2011 to 7.5% for the year ending August 25, 2012. The August 27, 2011 actual asset allocation in the chart above includes a $28.3 million cash contribution made prior to August 27, 2011. Subsequent to August 27, 2011, this cash contribution was allocated to the pension plan investments to achieve the revised asset allocation target.
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The change in fair value of Level 3 assets that use significant unobservable inputs is presented in the following table:

(in thousands)
Level 3
Assets

Beginning balance � August 27, 2011 $ 5,281
Actual return on plan assets:
Assets held at August 25, 2012 55
Assets sold during the year 168
Sales and settlements (3,100) 

Ending balance � August 25, 2012 $ 2,404

The following table sets forth the plans� funded status and amounts recognized in the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(in thousands)
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 241,645 $ 211,536
Interest cost 12,214 11,135
Actuarial losses 56,749 23,746
Benefits paid (5,402) (4,772) 

Benefit obligations at end of year $ 305,206 $ 241,645

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 156,883 $ 117,243
Actual return on plan assets 14,505 10,336
Employer contributions 15,423 34,076
Benefits paid (5,402) (4,772) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 181,409 $ 156,883

Amount Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position:
Current liabilities $ (30) $ (27) 
Long-term liabilities (123,767) (84,736) 

Net amount recognized $ (123,797) $ (84,763) 

Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and not yet reflected in Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Net actuarial loss $ (154,678) $ (106,972) 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (154,678) $ (106,972) 

Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and not yet reflected in Net Periodic Benefit Cost and expected to be amortized in next
year�s Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Net actuarial loss $ (14,721) $ (9,795) 

Amount recognized $ (14,721) $ (9,795) 

Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 66



59

Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 67



Table of Contents

Net periodic benefit expense consisted of the following:

Year Ended

(in thousands)
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
August 28,

2010
Interest cost $ 12,214 $ 11,135 $ 11,315
Expected return on plan assets (11,718) (9,326) (9,045) 
Amortization of prior service cost �  �  �  
Recognized net actuarial losses 9,795 9,405 8,135

Net periodic benefit expense $ 10,291 $ 11,214 $ 10,405

The actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligation include the following:

Year Ended
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
August 28,

2010
Weighted average discount rate 3.90% 5.13% 5.25% 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 8.00% 8.00% 

As the plan benefits are frozen, increases in future compensation levels no longer impact the calculation and there is no service cost. The discount rate is determined as of the measurement date and is based on the calculated yield of a portfolio of high-grade corporate bonds with cash flows that generally match the Company�s expected benefit payments in future years. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on the historical relationships between the investment classes and the capital markets, updated for current conditions.

The Company makes annual contributions in amounts at least equal to the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Company contributed $15.4 million to the plans in fiscal 2012, $34.1 million to the plans in fiscal 2011 and $12 thousand to the plans in fiscal 2010. The Company expects to contribute approximately $9 million to the plans in fiscal 2013; however, a change to the expected cash funding may be impacted by a change in interest rates or a change in the actual or expected return on plan assets.

Based on current assumptions about future events, benefit payments are expected to be paid as follows for each of the following fiscal years. Actual benefit payments may vary significantly from the following estimates:

(in thousands)
Benefit
Payments

2013 $ 7,438
2014 8,182
2015 8,867
2016 9,583
2017 10,164
2018 � 2022 60,567

The Company has a 401(k) plan that covers all domestic employees who meet the plan�s participation requirements. The plan features include Company matching contributions, immediate 100% vesting of Company contributions and a savings option up to 25% of qualified earnings. The Company makes matching contributions, per pay period, up to a specified percentage of employees� contributions as approved by the Board. The Company made matching contributions to employee accounts in connection with the 401(k) plan of $14.4 million in fiscal 2012, $13.3 million in fiscal 2011 and $11.7 million in fiscal 2010.
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Note M � Leases

The Company leases some of its retail stores, distribution centers, facilities, land and equipment, including vehicles. Other than vehicle leases, most of the leases are operating leases, which include renewal options made at the Company�s election, options to purchase and provisions for percentage rent based on sales. Rental expense was $229.4 million in fiscal 2012, $213.8 million in fiscal 2011, and $195.6 million in fiscal 2010. Percentage rentals were insignificant.

The Company has a fleet of vehicles used for delivery to its commercial customers and stores and travel for members of field management. The majority of these vehicles are held under capital lease. At August 25, 2012, the Company had capital lease assets of $104.2 million, net of accumulated amortization of $36.4 million, and capital lease obligations of $102.3 million, of which $29.8 million is classified as Accrued expenses and other as it represents the current portion of these obligations. At August 27, 2011, the Company had capital lease assets of $86.6 million, net of accumulated amortization of $30.2 million, and capital lease obligations of $86.7 million, of which $25.3 million was classified as Accrued expenses and other.

The Company records rent for all operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term, including any reasonably assured renewal periods and the period of time prior to the lease term that the Company is in possession of the leased space for the purpose of installing leasehold improvements. Differences between recorded rent expense and cash payments are recorded as a liability in Accrued expenses and other and Other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, based on the terms of the lease. The deferred rent approximated $86.9 million on August 25, 2012, and $77.6 million on August 27, 2011.

Future minimum annual rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases and capital leases were as follows at the end of fiscal 2012:

(in thousands)
Operating
Leases

Capital
Leases

2013 $ 217,844 $ 29,842
2014 209,300 28,859
2015 192,296 24,520
2016 174,844 17,181
2017 157,691 5,002
Thereafter 958,435 �  

Total minimum payments required $ 1,910,410 105,404

Less: Interest (3,148) 

Present value of minimum capital lease payments $ 102,256

In connection with the Company�s December 2001 sale of the TruckPro business, the Company subleased some properties to the purchaser for an initial term of not less than 20 years. The Company�s remaining aggregate rental obligation at August 25, 2012 of $17.3 million is included in the above table, but the obligation is entirely offset by the sublease rental agreement.

Note N � Commitments and Contingencies

Construction commitments, primarily for new stores, totaled approximately $25.6 million at August 25, 2012.

The Company had $102.3 million in outstanding standby letters of credit and $33.1 million in surety bonds as of August 25, 2012, which all have expiration periods of less than one year. A substantial portion of the outstanding standby letters of credit (which are primarily renewed on an annual basis) and surety bonds are used to cover reimbursement obligations to our workers� compensation carriers. There are no additional contingent liabilities associated with these instruments as the underlying liabilities are already reflected in the consolidated balance sheet. The standby letters of credit and surety bonds arrangements have automatic renewal clauses.
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Note O � Litigation

In 2004, the Company acquired a store site in Mount Ephraim, New Jersey that had previously been the site of a gasoline service station and contained evidence of groundwater contamination. Upon acquisition, the Company voluntarily reported the groundwater contamination issue to the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection and entered into a Voluntary Remediation Agreement providing for the remediation of the contamination associated with the property. The Company has conducted and paid for (at an immaterial cost to the Company) remediation of contamination on the property. The Company is also investigating, and will be addressing, potential vapor intrusion impacts in downgradient residences and businesses. The New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection has indicated that it will assert that the Company is liable for the downgradient impacts under a joint and severable liability theory, and the Company intends to contest any such assertions due to the existence of other sources of contamination in the area of the property. Pursuant to the Voluntary Remediation Agreement, upon completion of all remediation required by the agreement, the Company believes it should be eligible to be reimbursed up to 75 percent of qualified remediation costs by the State of New Jersey. The Company has asked the state for clarification that the agreement applies to off-site work, and the state is considering the request. Although the aggregate amount of additional costs that the Company may incur pursuant to the remediation cannot currently be ascertained, the Company does not currently believe that fulfillment of its obligations under the agreement or otherwise will result in costs that are material to its financial condition, results of operations or cash flow.

The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings incidental to the conduct of its business, including several lawsuits containing class-action allegations in which the plaintiffs are current and former hourly and salaried employees who allege various wage and hour violations and unlawful termination practices. The Company does not currently believe that, either individually or in the aggregate, these matters will result in liabilities material to the Company�s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note P � Segment Reporting

The Company�s two operating segments (Domestic Auto Parts and Mexico) have been aggregated as one reportable segment: Auto Parts Stores. The criteria the Company used to identify the reportable segment are primarily the nature of the products the Company sells and the operating results that are regularly reviewed by the Company�s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about the resources to be allocated to the business units and to assess performance. The accounting policies of the Company�s reportable segment are the same as those described in Note A.

The Auto Parts Stores segment is a retailer and distributor of automotive parts and accessories through the Company�s 5,006 stores in the United States, Puerto Rico, and Mexico. Each store carries an extensive product line for cars, sport utility vehicles, vans and light trucks, including new and remanufactured automotive hard parts, maintenance items, accessories and non-automotive products.

The �Other� category reflects business activities that are not separately reportable, including ALLDATA which produces, sells and maintains diagnostic and repair information software used in the automotive repair industry, and e-Commerce, which includes direct sales to customers through www.autozone.com.

The Company evaluates its reportable segment primarily on the basis of net sales and segment profit, which is defined as gross profit.
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The following table shows segment results for the following fiscal years:

Year Ended

(in thousands)
August 25,

2012
August 27,

2011
August 28,

2010
Net Sales:
Auto Parts Stores $ 8,422,559 $ 7,906,692 $ 7,213,753
Other 181,304 166,281 148,865

Total $ 8,603,863 $ 8,072,973 $ 7,362,618

Segment Profit:
Auto Parts Stores $ 4,292,474 $ 3,989,852 $ 3,591,464
Other 139,562 129,611 120,280

Gross profit 4,432,036 4,119,463 3,711,744
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses (2,803,145) (2,624,660) (2,392,330) 
Interest expense, net (175,905) (170,557) (158,909) 

Income before income taxes $ 1,452,986 $ 1,324,246 $ 1,160,505

Segment Assets:
Auto Parts Stores $ 6,214,688 $ 5,827,285 $ 5,531,955
Other 50,951 42,317 39,639

Total $ 6,265,639 $ 5,869,602 $ 5,571,594

Capital Expenditures:
Auto Parts Stores $ 364,361 $ 316,074 $ 307,725
Other 13,693 5,530 7,675

Total $ 378,054 $ 321,604 $ 315,400

Auto Parts Stores Sales by Product Grouping:
Failure $ 3,793,963 $ 3,530,497 $ 3,145,528
Maintenance items 3,196,807 3,051,672 2,792,610
Discretionary 1,431,789 1,324,523 1,275,615

Auto Parts Stores net sales $ 8,422,559 $ 7,906,692 $ 7,213,753
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Note Q � Quarterly Summary (1)

(Unaudited)

Twelve Weeks Ended
Sixteen

Weeks Ended

(in thousands, except per share data)
November 19,

2011
February 11,

2012
May 5,
2012

August  25,
2012(2)

Net sales $ 1,924,341 $ 1,804,069 $ 2,111,866 $ 2,763,585
Gross profit 983,627 926,215 1,089,799 1,432,394
Operating profit 340,934 300,651 427,250 560,056
Income before income taxes 301,840 261,728 387,507 501,911
Net income 191,125 166,930 248,586 323,733
Basic earnings per share 4.79 4.25 6.43 8.65
Diluted earnings per share 4.68 4.15 6.28 8.46

Twelve Weeks Ended
Sixteen

Weeks Ended

(in thousands, except per share data)
November 20,

2010
February 12,

2011
May 7,
2011

August  27,
2011(2)

Net sales $ 1,791,662 $ 1,660,946 $ 1,978,369 $ 2,641,996
Gross profit 907,748 845,611 1,013,530 1,352,574
Operating profit 306,121 271,748 392,925 524,010
Income before income taxes 268,868 232,172 353,009 470,197
Net income 172,076 148,056 227,373 301,469
Basic earnings per share 3.85 3.41 5.42 7.35
Diluted earnings per share 3.77 3.34 5.29 7.18

(1) The sum of quarterly amounts may not equal the annual amounts reported due to rounding. In addition, the earnings per share amounts are computed independently for each quarter while the full year is based on the annual weighted average shares outstanding.
(2) The fourth quarter for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 are based on a 16-week period. All other quarters presented are based on a 12-week period.
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of August 25, 2012, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of AutoZone�s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as amended. Based on that evaluation, our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective. During our fiscal fourth quarter ended August 25, 2012, there were no changes in our internal controls that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect internal controls over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information set forth in Part I of this document in the section entitled �Executive Officers of the Registrant,� is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item. Additionally, the information contained in AutoZone, Inc.�s Proxy Statement dated October 22, 2012, in the sections entitled �Proposal 1 � Election of Directors� and �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,� is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethical Conduct for Financial Executives that applies to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief accounting officer and persons performing similar functions. The Company has filed a copy of this Code of Ethical Conduct as Exhibit 14.1 to this Form 10-K. The Company has also made the Code of Ethical Conduct available on its investor relations website at http://www.autozoneinc.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information contained in AutoZone, Inc.�s Proxy Statement dated October 22, 2012, in the section entitled �Executive Compensation,� is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information contained in AutoZone, Inc.�s Proxy Statement dated October 22, 2012, in the sections entitled �Security Ownership of Management and Board of Directors� and �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners,� is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Not applicable.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information contained in AutoZone, Inc.�s Proxy Statement dated October 22, 2012, in the section entitled �Proposal 2 � Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,� is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The following information required under this item is filed as part of this report.

(a) Financial Statements

The following financial statements, related notes and reports of independent registered public accounting firm are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K in Part II, Item 8:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended August 25, 2012, August 27, 2011, and August 28, 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended August 25, 2012, August 27, 2011, and August 28, 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of August 25, 2012, and August 27, 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended August 25, 2012, August 27, 2011, and August 28, 2010
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Deficit for the fiscal years ended August 25, 2012, August 27, 2011, and August 28, 2010
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(b) Exhibits

The Exhibit Index following this document�s signature pages is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules are omitted because the information is not required or because the information required is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AUTOZONE, INC.

By: /s/ WILLIAM C. RHODES, III
William C. Rhodes, III
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: October 22, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ WILLIAM C. RHODES, III Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer October 22, 2012
William C. Rhodes, III (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ WILLIAM T. GILES Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice October 22, 2012
William T. Giles President � Finance, Information Technology and ALLDATA

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ CHARLIE PLEAS, III Senior Vice President and Controller October 22, 2012
Charlie Pleas, III (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ WILLIAM C. CROWLEY Director October 22, 2012
William C. Crowley

/s/ SUE E. GOVE Director October 22, 2012
Sue E. Gove

/s/ EARL G. GRAVES, JR. Director October 22, 2012
Earl G. Graves, Jr.

/s/ ROBERT R. GRUSKY Director October 22, 2012
Robert R. Grusky

Director October 22, 2012
Enderson Guimaraes

/s/ J.R. HYDE, III Director October 22, 2012
J.R. Hyde, III

/s/ W. ANDREW MCKENNA Director October 22, 2012
W. Andrew McKenna

/s/ GEORGE R. MRKONIC, JR. Director October 22, 2012
George R. Mrkonic, Jr.

/s/ LUIS P. NIETO Director October 22, 2012
Luis P. Nieto
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of AutoZone, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 13, 1999.

3.2 Fifth Amended and Restated By-laws of AutoZone, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 28, 2011.

4.1 Senior Indenture, dated as of July 22, 1998, between AutoZone, Inc. and the First National Bank of Chicago. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 17, 1998.

4.2 Indenture dated as of August 8, 2003, between AutoZone, Inc. and Bank One Trust Company, N.A. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-107828) filed August 11, 2003.

4.3 Terms Agreement dated October 16, 2002, by and among AutoZone, Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as
representatives of the several underwriters named therein. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 18, 2002.

4.4 Form of 5.875% Note due 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 18, 2002.

4.5 Terms Agreement dated May 29, 2003, by and among AutoZone, Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc., as representatives of the
several underwriters named therein. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2003.

4.6 Form of 4.375% Note due 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2003.

4.7 Form of 5.5% Note due 2015. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 3, 2003.

4.8 Terms Agreement dated June 8, 2006, by and among AutoZone, Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as
representatives of the several underwriters named therein. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 13, 2006.

4.9 Form of 6.95% Senior Note due 2016. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 13, 2006.

4.10 Officers� Certificate dated August 4, 2008, pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Indenture dated August 11, 2003, setting forth the terms of the 6.5% Senior Notes due 2014.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2008.

4.11 Form of 6.5% Senior Note due 2014. Incorporated by reference from the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2008.

4.12 Officers� Certificate dated August 4, 2008, pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Indenture dated August 11, 2003, setting forth the terms of the 7.125% Senior Notes due
2018. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2008.

4.13 Form of 7.125% Senior Note due 2018. Incorporated by reference from the Form 8-K dated August 4, 2008.
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    4.14 Officers� Certificate dated July 2, 2009, pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Indenture dated August 11, 2003, setting forth the terms of the 5.75% Notes due 2015.
Incorporated by reference to 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 2, 2009.

    4.15 Form of 5.75% Senior Note due 2015. Incorporated by reference from the Form 8-K dated July 2, 2009.

   4.16 Officers� Certificate dated November 15, 2010, pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Indenture dated August 8, 2003, setting forth the terms of the 4.000% Notes due 2020.
Incorporated by reference to 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 15, 2010.

   4.17 Form of 4.000% Senior Note due 2020. Incorporated by reference from the Form 8-K dated November 15, 2010.

   4.18 Officers� Certificate dated April 24, 2012, pursuant to section 3.2 of the indenture dated August 8, 2003, setting forth the terms of the 3.700% Senior Notes due 2022.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 24, 2012.

   4.19 Form of 3.700% Senior Notes due 2022. Incorporated by reference from the Form 8-K dated April 24, 2012.

*10.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Director Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 4, 2002.

*10.2 Second Amended and Restated 1998 Director Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended August 26, 2000.

*10.3 Third Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
August 30, 2003.

*10.4 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 23,
2002.

*10.5 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November
23, 2002.

*10.6 AutoZone, Inc. 2003 Director Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the definitive proxy statement dated November 1, 2002, for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held December 12, 2002.

*10.7 AutoZone, Inc. 2003 Director Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Appendix D to the definitive proxy statement dated November 1, 2002, for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held December 12, 2002.

*10.8 Amended and Restated AutoZone, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended February 15, 2003.

*10.9 AutoZone, Inc. 2006 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the definitive proxy statement dated October 25, 2006, for the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders held December 13, 2006.

*10.10 Form of Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2007.

*10.11 AutoZone, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated Executive Stock Purchase Plan.

*10.12 Amended and Restated AutoZone, Inc. 2003 Director Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 4, 2008.
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*10.13 Amended and Restated AutoZone, Inc. 2003 Director Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 4, 2008.

*10.14 AutoZone, Inc. Enhanced Severance Pay Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2008.

*10.15 Form of non-compete and non-solicitation agreement signed by each of the following executive officers: Mark A. Finestone, William T. Giles, William W. Graves,
Ronald B. Griffin, Lisa R. Kranc, Thomas B. Newbern, Charlie Pleas, III, Larry M. Roesel, and Mike A. Womack; and by AutoZone, Inc., with an effective date of
February 14, 2008, for each. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2008.

*10.16 Form of non-compete and non-solicitation agreement approved by AutoZone�s Compensation Committee for execution by non-executive officers. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2008.

*10.17 Agreement dated February 14, 2008, between AutoZone, Inc. and William C. Rhodes, III. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Current Report on Form
8-K dated February 15, 2008.

*10.18 Form of non-compete and non-solicitation agreement signed by each of the following officers: Rebecca W. Ballou, Dan Barzel, Craig Blackwell, Brian L. Campbell,
Philip B. Daniele, III, Robert A. Durkin, Bill Edwards, Joseph Espinosa, Preston B. Frazer, Stephany L. Goodnight, David Goudge, James C. Griffith, William R.
Hackney, Rodney Halsell, Jeffery Lagges, Grantland E. McGee, Jr., Mitchell Major, Ann A. Morgan, J. Scott Murphy, Jeffrey H. Nix, Raymond A. Pohlman,
Elizabeth Rabun, Juan A. Santiago, Joe L. Sellers, Jr., Brett Shanaman, Jamey Traywick, Solomon Woldeslassie, and Kristen C. Wright; and by AutoZone, Inc.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 3, 2008.

*10.19 Second Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Compete Agreement between AutoZone, Inc. and Harry L. Goldsmith dated December 29, 2008. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 2008.

*10.20 Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Compete Agreement between AutoZone, Inc. and Robert D. Olsen dated December 29, 2008. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 2008.

*10.21 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between AutoZone, Inc. and Robert D. Olsen dated September 29, 2009. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2009.

*10.22 AutoZone, Inc. 2010 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the definitive proxy statement dated October 26, 2009, for
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held December 16, 2009.

*10.23 AutoZone, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the definitive proxy statement dated October 25, 2010, for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders held December 15, 2010.

*10.24 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Stock Option Plan, effective September 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report of
Form 10-Q dated December 16, 2010.
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*10.25 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Stock Option Plan for certain executive officers, effective September 2010. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated December 16, 2010.

*10.26 Form of Letter Agreement dated as of December 14, 2010, amending certain Stock Option Agreements of executive officers. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated December 16, 2010.

*10.27 AutoZone, Inc. 2011 Director Compensation Program. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated December 16, 2010.

*10.28 Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement dated December 15, 2010, between AutoZone, Inc. and William C. Rhodes, III, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K dated December 15, 2010.

*10.29 Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Award Agreement between AutoZone, Inc. and Robert D. Olsen dated January 25, 2011. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated March 17, 2011.

*10.30 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q
dated March 17, 2011.

*10.31 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan for certain executive officers. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated March 17, 2011.

*10.32 First Amended and Restated AutoZone, Inc. Enhanced Severance Pay Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q dated
March 17, 2011.

*10.33 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan for officers effective September 27, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2011.

*10.34 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan for certain executive officers effective September 27, 2011. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2011.

  10.35 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of September, 13, 2011 among AutoZone, Inc. as Borrower, the several Lenders from time to time party thereto,
and Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Swingline Lender, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Syndication Agent, arranged by Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC as Joint Lead Arrangers and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Barclays Capital as Joint Book Runners.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 27, 2011.

*10.36 Sixth Amended and Restated AutoZone, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended August 27, 2011.

*10.37 Second Amended AutoZone, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed December 14, 2011.

*10.38 Offer letter dated May 23, 2012, to Mike A. Womack.

*10.39 Offer letter dated April 26, 2012, to Ronald B. Griffin.

*10.40 Amended Non-Compete Agreement between AutoZone, Inc. and Jon A. Bascom dated May 25, 2012.
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12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

14.1 Code of Ethical Conduct. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 30, 2003.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

**101.INS XBRL Instance Document

**101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

**101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Document

**101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Document

**101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Document

**101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Document

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** In accordance with Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files in Exhibit 101 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K shall be deemed �furnished� and not �filed.�
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